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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
To the Members of Cranes Software International Limited,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the Twenty-fourth Annual Report together with the audited accounts on the business and
operations of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2009 by itself and its fifteen subsidiaries, viz.

1. Systat Software Asia Pacific Ltd., India
2. Systat Software Inc., USA
3. Cranes Software International Pte Ltd., Singapore
4. Systat Software GmbH, Germany
5. Cranes  Software Inc., USA.
6. Analytix Systems Pvt Ltd.,India
7. Tilak Autotech Pvt Ltd., India
8. Proland Softwares Pvt Ltd.,India
9. Caravel Info Systems Pvt Ltd., India
10. Engineering Technology Associates Inc.,USA (WOS of Cranes Software Inc., USA)
11. Dunn Solutions Group Inc., USA (WOS of Cranes Software Inc., USA)
12. Cranes Software UK Ltd., United Kingdom (WOS of Systat Software Inc., USA)
13. Engineering Technology Associates (Shanghai) Inc., China (WOS of Engineering Technology Associates Inc., USA)
14. Cubeware GmbH, Germany (WOS of Systat Software GmbH, Germany)
15. Esqube Communciation Solutions Pvt Ltd., India

The Audited Accounts for the same period, of the above subsidiary companies have also been incorporated as per relevant regulations in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, also being presented.

Financial Performance (Rs. in Million)

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

Consolidated

Sales and Operating Revenues 3,768.56 2,820.88 5,288.56 3,986.42

Profit before tax 1,306.44 1,132.37 1,332.81 1,341.73

Taxes 150.00 183.23 117.81 191.97

Profit after tax 1,156.44 949.14 1,215.00 1,149.76

Net Profit attributable to shareholders 1,154.54 949.14 1,214.18 1,149.81

Surplus brought forward 1,388.84 900.68 1,535.59 846.77

Amount available for appropriation 2,543.37 1,849.82 2,749.77 1,996.58

Business
During the year, your Company, on a standalone basis, achieved a Sales and Operating Revenue of Rs. 3,768.56 million from Rs. 2,820.88 million
– a growth rate of 34%. The Profit before Tax increased by 15% from Rs. 1,132.37 million to Rs.1,306.44  million while Net Profit increased to
Rs.1,154.54 million from Rs. 949.14 million (higher by 22%).

On a consolidated basis, during the year, your Company together with its above named subsidiaries, achieved a Sales and Operating Revenue of
Rs.5,288.56 million from Rs. 3,986.42 million– a growth rate of 33% while Net Profit increased from Rs 1,149.81 million to Rs.1,214.18 million.

Operations
During the year under review, your Company acquired Cubeware GmbH a Company based in Rosenhiem, Germany through its Subsidiary -
Systat Software GmbH, on a Cash cum Share deal aggregating to Euro 18 million, of which Euro 12 million is payable in cash, and shares of your
Company aggregating to Euro 6 million were issued, on getting the approval of FIPB.

During the year under review, the operations of the Company were shifted from Shankar Narayana Building to our own premises at Bannerghatta
Road, this new location will consolidate operations and thereby save costs. Consequently, the registered office of the Company and its Indian
subsidiaries were shifted to #29, 7th Cross, 14th Main, Vasanthnagar, Bangalore – 560 052 so as to consolidate all corporate functions at one location.

Appropriation
Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 10% (Rs. 0.20 per share) on the equity shares for the year under review.
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The amount on account of the above Dividend including Dividend Tax and Surcharge thereon on distributed profits works out to Rs.27.56 million,

leaving the Company with Rs.2,515.81 million, of which Rs. 300 million is transferred to General Reserve and the balance of Rs.2,215.81 million is

retained as surplus in the Profit and Loss Account.

Subsidiary Companies / Joint Ventures

As per Sec 212(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 the Company is required to attach to its accounts, the Directors Report, Profit  & Loss Account,

Balance Sheet of each of the above subsidiaries. Your Company applied to the Government of India seeking an exemption from such attachment since

the Company is presenting its Consolidated Financial Statements in the Annual Report. The Company received approval for the same and hence the

financial statements of the subsidiaries are not enclosed. As per the terms of this approval, certain details relating to the subsidiaries are being

published in the Consolidated Financial Statements section. The Annual Accounts and the related information on the subsidiaries are available for

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and copies shall be provided on request.

In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated

Financial Statements which form a part of the Annual Report and Accounts. This along with the Company’s results, we believe, present a full view

of the state of affairs of the Company.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted deposits from the public during the current year.

Directorate

Mr. Mirza Yawar Baig and Mr. Ajay Singh retire by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Mr. Mirza Yawar Baig, being eligible, offers

himself for re-appointment. Mr. Ajay Singh has expressed his intention not to seek re-appointment. Your Company has been immensely benefited

from the insights of Mr. Ajay Singh and the Board places on record their deep appreciation for the services rendered by him during his tenure on

the Board.

Conservation of Energy

Even though the operations of your Company are not energy-intensive, adequate measures have been taken to reduce energy consumption by

using efficient equipments. Since it is a software products Company, primarily dealing with scientific and engineering software products and

product related projects, energy cost forms a very small part of total cost and its impact on total cost is not material.

Research & Development Activities

At Cranes, we are committed to building a strong R&D culture from day one and have set clear R&D goals. In order to achieve these goals, Cranes

has focused on furthering the efficacies of R&D activities as well as building synergies among multiple-impact technologies. The statement giving

information as required under Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules 1988 is enclosed to

this report.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign exchange earned (FOB) during 2008-09 is Rs. 3,028.63 million and foreign exchange outgo is Rs. 1,052.64 million during the year.

Employees

The particulars of employees as per Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,

1975 is enclosed.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act 1956, the Directors hereby confirm that they have:

i. Followed the applicable accounting standards in the preparation of the annual accounts;

ii. Selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the Company for the

year under review;

iii. Taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act

1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. Prepared the accounts for the financial year on a ‘going concern’ basis.
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Corporate Governance

A detailed report on Corporate Governance & Management Discussion and Analysis are attached.

The Board members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. Declaration of Confirmation by the

Managing Director to this effect is annexed hereto.

Auditors
The auditors of the Company, Messrs. S.Janardhan & Associates, Chartered Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are

eligible for reappointment. The declaration under Section 224(1)(B) of the Companies Act 1956 has been received from them.

Acknowledgement
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from Banks, Financial Institutions,

Government, Customers, Suppliers, Business Partners and Shareholders for the year under review.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by employees at all levels of the Company, whose committed

efforts are a reflection of our results and look forward to their continued support.

for and on behalf of the Board

Bangalore Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan

July 30, 2009 Managing Director Director
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Form – B
Information as per section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the report of  the Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2009.

Research & Development Activities and Technology Absorption :
Cranes’ business model ‘Acquire-Enhance-Expand’ is based on acquisition of technologically superior IPs, re-engineering them to add new features
and functionalities, and expansion to the global market. While this in itself involves a significant amount of R&D, Cranes has also taken some
dedicated in-house initiatives in selected technology areas such as Wireless Communication Systems and LAN test solutions.

Your Company, in association with the Centre for Sponsored Schemes and Projects of Indian Institute of Science (IISc), Bangalore, has helped set up
a MEMS (Micro-Electro-Mechanical systems) design and characterization laboratory at the IISc campus. Here Cranes works alongside cutting edge
researchers to create an IP portfolio in MEMS and Nanotechnology, evaluate the commercial potential of research and chart out development paths
for future products. This is in line with our vision and commitment to support and nurture the ecosystem of research and innovation that drives
technology based economies. The Indian Institute of Science and the Company will jointly own the Intellectual Property rights and patents for
technologies and products developed by this lab.

During the year, your Company put significant effort in initiating to major research efforts, in addition to the regular research activities in its well
established business units such as SYSTAT, Sigma Plot, etc. A small nanotechnology team was established with complete focus on research and
development in the area of nanotech instrumentation. This area was chosen based on our experience with Micro Electro Mechanical System (MEMS)
technology over the last five years and our proven strength in software development for scientific visualization. The nanotech team was established
to focus on Scanning Probe Microscopy and an appropriate lab was established in the Cranes Innovation Center located at the Indian Institute of
Science campus. The nanotech team has worked relentlessly to produce a prototype of one of the microscopes with a goal of achieving a few
nanometer resolutions, and your Company has been successful in this endevor.

The research work with several other divisions of the company, notably Caravel and Wireless are in progress to take advantage of the existing expertise
in associated areas. In particular, Caravel participated in the development of key electronics components. It is envisaged that the Sigma team will get
involved in developing proprietary imaging software for the instruments developed by the groups. The last quarter of the year however, saw a
considerable slow down on the activities of the group due to inevitable effect of overall business slow down on the research and development activities.

Another major R&D initiative was taken by the NISA group in engineering to tie up with the IISc on a joint software product development in the area
of Microsystems Analysis and Design. This is a major rational effort funded by a national program, NPMASS, to create a microsystem module that
can plug into the existing robust engine of NISA to give users a reliable design platform. This initiative involves a large team of researchers from IISc
and a team of professional software developers from NISA. This project is scheduled to be completed in four years.

The goal of Cranes’ R&D initiatives is not about conjuring up pictures of the future, though that is part of what is done, but is more about systematic
and continuous surveillance of future markets, identification of the discontinuities that are bound to crop up and the resultant technological
requirements, and creation of technological models that we must come up with to cater to requirements across the globe. In turn, we are creating
new business avenues to explore opportunities for products, systems and services for as diverse an industry spectrum as possible for your
Company.

For and  on behalf of the Board

Bangalore Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan
July 30, 2009 Managing Director Director
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its  employees and all Board Members and Senior Management.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2009, received from the Senior Management Team of the Company
and the Members of the Board a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Personnel means the employees in Executive Vice President Cadre and Company Secretary
as on March 31, 2009.

For Cranes Software International Ltd.,

Bangalore Asif Khader
July 30, 2009 Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Information as per Sec 217(2a) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of employees) Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended March 31, 2009

Sl. No. Name Designation Qualifications Age in Years Remuneration Total Exp. In Years Date of Joining Particulars of the previous employment

a) Employed for the full Financial Year

1 Asif Khader Managing Director B.E., PG Dip in Stat. 43 2,916,804 19 30-Apr-02 Erstwhile Cranes Software International Limited

2 Mukkaram Jan Whole-Time Director BCom 43 2,916,804 19 30-Apr-02 Erstwhile Cranes Software International Limited

3 Mueed Khader Whole-Time Director BSc, Dip in Computer Science 38 2,916,804 12 30-Apr-02 Erstwhile Cranes Software International Limited

4 Syed Aarif Hashmi Sr. Vice President B.E 45 3,405,948 19 04-Sep-00 Senior Vice President - Systat Software
Asia Pacific Ltd.

5 Shankar H Executive Vice President & CFO B.TECH (IIT M) and PG DIPLOMA 59  3,151,063 35 10-May-04 Managing Director - Saint-Gobain Sepr
(IIM A) in Business Administration Refractories India Limited

6 Rajeeva Laxman Karandikar Executive VP & Head Analytic PH.D. (ISI C) & M.STAT (ISI C) 52 5,476,017 30 02-May-06 Professor - ISI New Delhi
Practice

7 Amlan Kusum Nayak Associate Vice president - PHD (IIT M) & M.TECH (IIT M) 45 2,738,544 20 20-Sep-02 Project Manager - Eval Technologies
Development

b) Employess for part of the year under review and was in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate of not less than Rs.2.00 lakhs per month

1 Srinivas Bhogle Vice President - Analytics PHD, MPHIL, MSTAT, & BSTAT 52 1,655,842 25 01-Oct-97 Scientist in Grade 4 - NAL

2 Akhilesh Khazanchi Executive VP - B.A, Masters in Per. Mgmt. & 45 2,677,012 22 12-Oct-06 Director - HR - Equinox Global Services

Global HR And Corp. Affairs IR, Dip. in Training and
Dev & Dip. in Labour Law and
Welfare

3 Krishna Lakshmi Narasimhan Sr. Vice President - Corporate B.TECH (IIT M) & MBA (Insead) 48 1,892,089 26 05-Oct-05 Executive Vice President - Gavs Information
Business Development Services Pvt. Ltd.

Note :

a) Remuneration show above comprises basic salary, allowances and taxable value of perquisites

b) Except persons mentioned in Sl No.1 & 3, above who are related to each other as per Section 6 read with Schedule 1A of the Companies Act, 1956, none of the other employees are related to any Director of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Bangalore ASIF KHADER MUKKARAM JAN

July 30, 2009 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2008-09
(ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT)

The Corporate Philosophy, as enshrined in its mission statement of “Exploring for a Better Tomorrow” is to optimize and increase the value to all
stakeholders, creditors, employees and the society at large through adherence to corporate values, codes of conduct and other standards of
behaviour. The Company seeks to ensure professionalism in all its dealings. The Board believes in conforming to, and exceeding wherever possible,
the prevalent mandatory guidelines on Corporate Governance.

Board of Directors:
The composition of the Board is as follows:

Promoter Group:
Asif Khader
Mukkaram Jan
Mueed Khader
Non- Executive Directors:
Dr. Rudra Pratap
Richard Gall
Ronald Brown
Ajay Singh - Independent Director
Mirza Yawar Baig - Independent Director
Dr. Manju Bansal - Independent Director
Dr. Peter Ryser - Independent Director

Details of Board Meetings held during the year:

The Board met 5 times during the year, as follows :

During the quarter ended June 30, 2008 June 26, 2008
During the quarter ended September 30, 2008 July 31, 2008
During the quarter ended December 31, 2008 October 30, 2008
During the quarter ended March 31, 2009 January 29, 2009

March 13, 2009

Details of attendance at Board Meetings and last AGM and details of memberships in other Boards and Board Committees:

The Board being represented by members from various parts of the world, it may not be possible for all to be physically present at all Board Meetings;
such Directors who are unable to be present invariably participate in the proceedings through telephonic conference calls.

Name of the Date of No. of Board Whether Membership Committees2

Director Appointment Meetings attended in Membership Chairmanship
attended last AGM other Boards1

Dr. Rudra Pratap June 21, 2002 5 Yes - 3 1

Asif Khader April 30, 2002 5 Yes 6 1 -

Mukkaram Jan April 30, 2002 5 Yes 7 2 1

Mueed Khader April 30, 2002 5 Yes 6 - -

Richard Gall May 16, 2002 5 Yes - - -

Ronald Brown November 21, 2002 5 Yes - - -

Ajay Singh February 18, 2003 – No 1 2 2

Mirza Yawar Baig March 31, 2003 5 Yes - 2 -

Dr. Manju Bansal March 31, 2004 5 Yes - 2 -

Dr. Peter Ryser March 29, 2005 5 Yes - - -

Audit Committee:
The scope of reference of the committee, inter alia, includes:
• Review of audit with Statutory Auditors & Internal Auditors.
• Limited Review of quarterly accounts with Statutory Auditors.
• Review of annual financial statements with auditors and management before submission to the Board.
• Review of adequacy of internal control systems and internal audit function.
• Other matters as set out in the Listing Agreement and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

1 Excludes companies exempted under Sec 278 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Foreign Companies.
2
 Membership in Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Investor Grievance Committee only considered.
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The Committee consists of the following directors :

Ajay Singh – Chairman

Mirza Yawar Baig – Member

Dr. Rudra Pratap – Member

Dr. Manju Bansal – Member

The Committee met five times during the year. The dates of the meetings with details of attendance of the directors thereat is given below:

Name of the Director June 26, 2008 July 31, 2008 October 30, 2008 January 29, 2009 March 13, 2009

Ajay Singh – – – – –

Dr. Rudra Pratap Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mirza Yawar Baig Yes Yes Yes Yes –

Dr. Manju Bansal Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

The Statutory Auditors and Mr. H Shankar, CFO, attended all the meetings.

Remuneration Committee:

The Board has constituted a Remuneration Committee under the provisions of Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956 to finalize and propose the

remuneration for Wholetime Directors and Managing Director. The Committee consists of Mr. Ajay Singh (Chairman), Dr. Rudra Pratap,

Mr. Mirza Yawar Baig and Dr. Manju Bansal. The Committee met on June 26, 2008 to consider the commission to be paid to the Wholetime Directors.

Dr. Rudra Pratap, Mr. Mirza Yawar Baig and Dr. Manju Bansal were present for the meeting. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary,

perquisites and allowances and a commission to the Managing Director and the Wholetime Directors.

The details of remuneration of the managerial personnel for the year 2008-09 is given in 21.2 of Notes on Accounts.

For Non-Executive Directors:

No fixed remuneration is paid to the Non-executive Directors, they are paid commission as a percentage of the net profits, as decided by the Board,

but within the limits set under the provisions of the Sec 309 of the Companies Act, 1956.The payment of Commission was approved by the

Shareholders at the AGM held on September 11, 2006. The basis of determining the specific amount of commission payable to these directors is

related to their attendance at meetings, contribution at meetings as perceived by the Board and the extent of consultations with them outside the

meetings. The details of commission payable to the non-executive directors for the year is given below:

Name of the Director Commission in Rs.

Dr. Rudra Pratap 975,000

Richard Gall 500,000

Ronald Brown 515,000

Dr. Manju Bansal 580,000

Mirza Yawar Baig 875,000

Dr. Peter Ryser 530,000

Ajay Singh 225,000

Total 4,200,000

The Non Executive Directors do not hold any shares of the company in their names.

Share Holder Grievance Committee:

The Company has a Shareholder Grievance Committee consisting of Dr. Rudra Pratap, Mr. Mukkaram Jan and Mr. Asif Khader to look into the

grievances of investors. During the year there were no unresolved grievances from the investors / shareholders as on March 31, 2009.

The Company has designated an email id exclusively for redressal of Investor Grievances, viz., investor.grievances@cranessoftware.com in

compliance with clause 47(f) of the listing agreement for speedy redressal of investor grievances.
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Annual General Meetings:
Details of last three Annual General Meetings and the Special Resolutions passed there at are as under:

Date of AGM Time Venue Special Resolutions passed

September 11, 2006 a) Issue of ESOPs for employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.
b) Payment of Commission to Non-executive Directors.
c) Issue of shares on preferential basis to strategic investors

September 13, 2007 Increase in the limit to accept investment from FIIs from 49% to 60%.

September 29, 2008 Issue of shares on Preferential basis for consideration other than Cash as part
consideration for the acquisition of Cubeware GmbH.

For AGM 2009, the Company does not have any proposal for postal ballot.

Disclosures:
During the year the Company did not enter into any transactions of material nature with any of the Promoters, Directors, Management or relative etc.,
which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

Insider Trading:
Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, the Company has adopted a code of
conduct for prevention of insider trading and the required disclosure practices.

Means of Communication:
The quarterly results are published generally in ‘Business Standard’ & ‘Samyukta Karnataka’ (Kannada). The results are also updated on the
corporate website (www.cranessoftware.com). The quarterly results and the shareholding pattern are uploaded in the website of SEBI under
EDIFAR Menu.

General Shareholder Information

a 24th  Annual General Meeting
Date and Time On Tuesday, September 29,  2009 at 3.00 p.m.
Venue Hotel Capitol, Raj Bhavan Road, Bangalore -  560 001

b Financial Calendar
Audited Annual Results – 2008-09 June 30, 2009
Unaudited results for the quarter ending June 30, 2009 Last week of July, 2009
Unaudited results for the quarter ending September 30, 2009 Last week of October, 2009
Unaudited results for the quarter ending December 31, 2009 Last week of January, 2010
Audited Annual Results - 2009-10 First week of June, 2010

c Book closure date September 24, 2009 to September 29, 2009 (both days
inclusive)

d Dividend payment date On or after October 5, 2009

e Listing of Equity shares
Name and address of Stock Exchange Stock Code

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 512093
P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) CRANESSOFT – EQ
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051
The Listing Fees has been paid to all the Stock Exchanges

f Website of the Company www.cranessoftware.com

g Registrar and Transfer Agents Alpha Systems Private Limited
No. 30, Ramana Residency,
4th Cross Sampige Road,
Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003

h Demat ISIN Number alloted to the Company INE234B01023

The Company came out with a Euro 42 million, 2.50% Foreign Currency Convertible Bond (FCCBs) issue during 2005-06, the FCCBs are listed at
the Singapore Stock Exchange. The FCCBs are convertible into shares or GDRs and the GDRs would be listed at the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
and the shares with BSE & NSE in India. As of date no conversions have taken place.
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Share Price Data:
The Share price data on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) during the year

2008-09  is given below :

Month BSE NSE
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)

Apr-08 143.75 118.55 144.00 110.60

May-08 129.00 111.00 128.00 112.40

Jun-08 129.00 114.50 132.00 115.00

Jul-08 136.00 110.05 129.00 109.00

Aug-08 126.90 114.15 135.00 114.20

Sep-08 123.95 101.30 124.00 93.50

Oct-08 108.00 76.00 109.15 77.00

Nov-08 97.00 79.00 96.40 77.65

Dec-08 87.95 65.00 88.65 69.05

Jan-09 76.30 66.00 80.00 65.65

Feb-09 75.45 41.55 75.45 41.50

Mar-09 47.00 35.20 47.05 35.25

A comparison of the share price movement on BSE compared with the BSE SENSEX is given below :

Registrar & Transfer Agents:

Share Transfer work is being done by M/s Alpha Systems Pvt. Ltd, No.30 Ramana Residency, 4th Cross, Sampige Road, Malleswaram,

Bangalore – 560 003 who are SEBI registered Registrars & Transfer Agents for both physical and demat shares.

Share Transfer System:

The power to approve transfer of shares has been delegated by the Board to the Share Transfer committee. Share transfers are processed within

15 days from their receipt.

Secretarial Audit:
As required by SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dt. 31.12.2002, secretarial audit was carried out by a Practicing Company Secretary on

quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with both the depositories and the total issued and listed capital. The total number of shares in

physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with the depositories were in agreement with the total issued / paid-up capital.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Norms:
The Board periodically reviews the compliance of all applicable laws and gives appropriate directions wherever necessary.

A Certificate from the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer on the financial statements were placed before the Board.
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The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as enumerated in Clause 49 of the listing agreements

with stock exchanges. The Company has obtained a certificate from the statutory auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the provisions

of the above clause and the same is attached hereto.

Distribution of Shareholdings as on March 31, 2009:

No. of shares held Folios Shares
Number % to Total  Number % to Total

upto 500 3,589 85.01 442,192 0.38

501 - 1000  247 5.85 208,593 0.18

1001 - 2000 122 2.89 196,216 0.16

2001 - 3000  47 1.11 120,633 0.10

3001 - 4000 27 0.64 97,683 0.08

4001 - 5000 24 0.57 116,464 0.10

5001 - 10000 40 0.95 314,409 0.27

10001 & above 126 2.98 116,270,660 98.73

Total 4,222 100.00 117,766,850 100.00

Pattern of Share Holding as on March 31, 2009

Dematerialisation of Shares:
The Company has entered into necessary agreements with NSDL & CDSL for dematerialization of shares held by investors. As of March 31, 2009
about 97% of the Company’s shares are held in dematerialised form.

Office Locations:
Being a scientific software products Company, it has its product development center  at Bangalore and offices at New Delhi,  Hyderabad and Pune.

Address for Communication:
1. To the Company:

H Shankar
Compliance Officer,
Cranes Software International Ltd.
# 29, 7th Cross, 14th Main, Vasanth Nagar
Bangalore – 560 052.

2. To the Registrar & Transfer Agent – for Share Transfers / Transmissions..etc
Vijay Gopal
Vice President
Alpha Systems Pvt. Ltd
No. 30, Ramana Residency
4th Cross, Sampige Road
Malleswaram,
Bangalore – 560 003.
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE
(Under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

To the Members of Cranes Software International Limited, Bangalore.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by CRANES SOFTWARE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, for the year ended

31.3.2009, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and

implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit

nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by the

Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which

the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for S.JANARDHAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(BALAKRISHNA S.BHAT)
Bangalore PARTNER

July 30, 2009 Membership No.202976
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Financial Perspective

Source of Funds:

Share Capital

The Company’s authorized share capital is Rs. 350 million  comprising  165 million equity shares of Rs. 2/- each and 200,000 preference shares

of Rs. 100/- each.

During the year under review the Company issued and allotted 30,98,880 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid-up for consideration other than

Cash being part consideration for the acquisition of Cubeware GmbH, by its wholly owned subsidiary Systat Software GmbH.

Reserves and Surplus

The Company’s total reserves and surplus for fiscal 2008-09 stood at Rs. 6,425.44 million, increasing by Rs. 1,746.06 million from

Rs. 4,679.38 million in the previous fiscal year. The major contributors to such an increase were retention of the year’s profits (increase in balance

of profit & loss account) of Rs. 886.62 million, increase in share premium account (receipts on issue of preferential allotment) of Rs. 381.16 million,

increase in general reserve of Rs. 300.00 million and growth in foreign currency translation reserve of Rs. 178.28 million.

Loan Funds

Total loan funds outstanding at the end of fiscal 2008-09 amounted to Rs. 8,238.45 million from Rs. 5,847.69 million at the end of FY2008.

Total loan funds comprise of Rs. 3,957.33 million of secured loans and Rs. 4,281.12 million of unsecured loans.

Out of total increase of Rs. 2,390.76 million in loan funds at the close of the year, Rs. 1,698.89 million were towards secured loans while the

remaining Rs. 691.87 million was in the form of unsecured loans.

Working capital loans (secured loans) increased by Rs. 553.84 million to Rs. 2,214.91 million while short term loans (unsecured loans) grew by

Rs. 695.31 million at the end of FY2009.

Deferred Tax Liability

The deferred tax liability increased by Rs.  53.10 million to Rs.  578.61 million as the Company continued to invest in the expansion of its asset base.

Application of Funds:

Fixed Assets

The Company’s gross block of assets expanded by Rs. 1,135.93 million to Rs.  6,364.89 million during FY2009. Capital work in progress was higher

by Rs.  223.26 million to Rs.  3,389.88 million compared to Rs. 3,166.62 million in the previous year. Substantial part of this is invested into future

version development, following a clearly defined strategy. Some of the software developed has been launched during the year while others are in

the pipeline for subsequent launch as per plan. Depreciation charged on the asset base was higher at Rs. 768.99 million in FY 2009 compared to

Rs. 568.34 million in the previous year. Computer software (IP) is a significant component of the asset base.

Investments

The Company’s investments were modestly higher by Rs. 1.67 million to Rs. 3.89 million during FY2009.

Inventories

The Company’s inventory position was up 126% at Rs. 37.02 million compared to Rs. 16.36 million at the close of last year.

Sundry Debtors

During the year under review, Sundry debtors increased to Rs. 3,794.97 million at the close of FY2009 compared to Rs. 1,550.17 million a year ago.

Day’s sales outstanding (DSO) for the Company stood at 258 days compared to 143 days in the previous year.

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Bank balances were at Rs. 2,501.00 million compared to Rs. 2,808.74 million last year.

Loans and Advances

Loans and advances were up  from Rs. 400.53 million to Rs. 1,358.87 million in the current year. The major contributor to this significant rise was

the increase in ‘Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received’, which was up by Rs. 947.85 million.

Current Liabilities

Sundry creditors increased by Rs. 511.61 million to Rs. 1,429.32 million from Rs. 917.71 million at close of the previous year.
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Provisions
Provisions  increased  to Rs. 178.87 million at the close of FY2009 from Rs. 162.44 million a year ago.

Miscellaneous Expenditure
Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not written off and adjusted) reduced to Rs. 8.71 million from Rs. 164.69 million at close of last year on
account of a reduction in ‘Deferred revenue expenditure’ by Rs.  155.98 million.

Operating Results
Income
The Company reported a growth of 32.7% in revenues to Rs. 5,288.56 million in FY2009 from Rs. 3,986.42 million in FY2008. Revenues from
overseas were up 41% to Rs. 4,508.58 million and constitute 88.6% of total revenues. Exports comprised 85% of the year’s total revenues.

The software training and services amounted to Rs. 48.00 million in the current fiscal under review, down 28% from Rs. 66.86 million last year.
A decline in student registrations in Varsity and reduced campus recruitments has led to the fall in training earnings. Over the years, Cranes’ varsity
training program has been widely popular among engineering and science students who want customized training on a variety of tools in
embedded engineering, digital signal processing (DSP), real time operating systems code generation (RTOS) and math simulation. With the rapid
rise in number of graduates seeking employment every year, the opportunity potential for an even higher upswing in the varsity plans are immense.

Cranes has an immense talent pool of researchers who have a strong academic background in teaching and developing course ware, in addition
to providing domain specific consulting on the use of stat and math modeling. Going forward, Cranes Varsity will also expand into providing
customized training on the use of its statistical suite of tools for data analytics that can be applied across social sciences, life sciences and
pharmaceutical, retail and marketing, telecom and financial services domains.

Business-wise Revenue Analysis (Rs. Million)

FY2007 FY2008 FY2009

Proprietary Products 2,252 3,247 4536

Product Alliances 491 607 474

Training & Services 94 98 78

TOTAL 2,837 3,952 5088

Expenditure
During FY2009, cost of good sold increased by 41.6% to Rs. 1,122.21 million largely on account of increase in direct expenses. This represents the
cost of shrink-wrapped software products sold in India for third parties through the Company’s multiple distribution alliances together with direct
costs involved in the manufacture and logistics of distribution of proprietary products.

Personnel costs were up 53% at Rs. 804.37 million and represented 15.2% of total revenues. Administrative expenses increased by 52.1% to
Rs. 960.00 million and were 18.1% of total revenues. These increases   were largely attributed to the increase in staff and other operational
expenditure incurred for the Cubeware acquisition. Total human resources strength expanded from 1040 last year to 1130 people.

Depreciation charged during FY2009 amounted to Rs. 769.00 million, an increase of   35% in line with the growth and investments needed thereon.

Profit Analysis
Cranes posted profit before tax of Rs. 1,332.81 million in FY2009. Current income tax was Rs. 117.81 million as against Rs. 191.97 million last year.
There was a considerable decrease in deferred tax  from Rs. 161.95 million to Rs. 55.96 million. Fringe benefit tax also fell  to Rs. 2.75 million in the
current fiscal under review.

The Company earned a net profit of Rs. 1,215.00 million, up 5.7% from Rs. 1,149.76 million in FY2008. This translated into fully diluted EPS of
Rs. 9.36 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009.

Liquidity
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents were at Rs. 2,501.00 million compared to Rs. 2,808.74 million in the previous year. This 11.0% decline
was primarily due to a significant increase in cash requirements for operating activities.

In FY2009, negative cash flow of (Rs.  80.32 million) resulted  from operating activities mainly on account of significant increase in debtors and loans
& advances. The operating profit before working capital charges was higher by 18% at Rs. 2,402.00 million but the large adjustments for working

capital including inventory, debtors and loan & advances  adversely impacted the cash flow from operations.
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In line with our efforts to consolidate operations, the Company reduced its investments by 30% to Rs. 1,964.58 million mainly on account our

strategy to cut down on expenses related to acquisition of property and other fixed assets.

The Company’s net cash generated from financing activities was up 130.1% at Rs. 1,749.62 million.

Internal Control Systems
Having grown to a sizeable operation, the management has focused on augmenting its internal control systems and processes to support further

growth opportunities. To this effect, the Company got certified under ISO 9001 standards in FY2002 and later the company was assessed at

SEICMM Level 5 during FY 2005. The Company has also obtained certification under ISO 27001 Information Security Management System in

FY 2006 and has initiated SEI-CMMi Level 5 assessment for its processes.

Human Resources
The Company continues to focus on business expansion while limiting the resources deployed to achieve such expansion. Its manpower strength

increased to 1130 in the current year. The mix of such members consists of Domain Experts as also technology architects apart from Sales and

Marketing personnel manning the global offices. Acquisitions made in the year also served to augment manpower strength and quality.

Safe Harbor
Certain statements in this release concerning our growth prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject

to certain risks and uncertainties, including government actions; local political or economic developments; technological risks; risks inherent in the

Company’s growth strategy; dependence on certain clients; dependence on availability of technical consultants and other factors that could cause

our actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation

to publicly update these forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The members of Cranes Software International Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet M/s. Cranes Software International Limited, as at 31st March 2009, the Profit and Loss

Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.  These financial statements are the responsibility of

the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India.  Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003, (as amended) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of

sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs

4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes

of our audit;

ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of

those books;

iii) The Balance Sheet, the  Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books

of account;

iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet,  the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the

Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section  (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors, as on 31st March 2009 and taken on record by the Board of

Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2009 from being appointed as a  director in terms of

clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

vi) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the information

required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2009;

(b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

For S.JANARDHAN & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat

Bangalore Partner

June 30, 2009 Membership No.202976
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ANNEXURE

(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the Assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which,

in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed

on such verification.

(c) The Company has not disposed off substantial part of fixed assets during the year and therefore do not affect the going concern

assumption.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed

by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the

book records were not material.

(iii) The Company has not granted/taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register

maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. In view of the above, clause 4 (iii) (b), (c), (d), (f) and (g) of the said order are not

applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate

with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets and with regard to the sale of

goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the internal

control system.

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of all contracts and arrangements

referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act 1956 have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the contracts and arrangements entered in the register

maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing

market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) The company has not accepted any deposit from the public and as such the provisions of clause 4(vi) of the said Order are not applicable.

(vii) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records as required under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 209

of the Companies Act, 1956.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including, Provident Fund, Investor Education and

Protection Fund, Employees’ state Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs duty and Cess have generally

been regularly deposited by the company with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, details of dues of Sales tax, Service tax, Income tax, Customs duty, Wealth tax,

and Cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are given below

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Period to which Forum where Amount

amount relates  dispute is pending

Income Tax 2004-05 to 2007-08 Commmissioner of Income Tax, 114.20

Appeals – IV

Income Tax 2005-06 to 2006-07 Commmissioner of Income Tax, 366.20

Appeals – I

Sales Tax 2005-06 to 2007-08 Commissioner of Commercial

Taxes, Appeals 10.42

32



Annual Report 2008-09

(x) The Company does not have accumulated losses, as at March 31, 2009.The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year

covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution and banks wherever applicable. There are no debenture

holders as at the balance sheet date.

(xii) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of

pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a chit fund or a Nidhi /mutual benefit fund/

society.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities,

debentures and other investments.

(xv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, and as per our examination of relevant records, the terms and

conditions on which guarantees are given are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they

were raised.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that

no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained

under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix) During the year, the Company has not raised any funds by issue of debentures.

(xx) During the year covered by our audit report, the company has not raised any money by way of public issue.

(xxi) During the course of our examination of the books of account carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India

and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported during the year.

For S.JANARDHAN & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat
Bangalore Partner

June 30, 2009 Membership No.202976
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT  MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Sch.No. Current Year Previous  Year

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 1 235,533,700 229,335,940
Reserves and Surplus 2 6,088,641,390 4,580,499,172

6,324,175,090 4,809,835,112

Loan Funds
Secured Loans 3 3,269,222,842 2,258,438,794
Unsecured Loans 4 4,163,257,578 3,470,172,616

7,432,480,420 5,728,611,410

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 509,513,157 453,727,914

TOTAL 14,266,168,667 10,992,174,436

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 5 4,927,529,005 4,278,020,136
Less : Accumulated Depreciation 2,216,328,341 1,502,980,994

Net Block 2,711,200,664 2,775,039,142
Capital Work in Progress 2,696,489,636 2,609,798,478

5,407,690,300 5,384,837,620

Goodwill 387,360,000                                 –

Investments 6 801,271,307 801,348,647

Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Inventories 7 13,816,078 11,676,206
Sundry Debtors 8 3,913,892,752 1,191,398,806
Cash and Bank Balances 9 2,410,413,464 2,718,783,330
Loans and Advances 10 2,005,720,647 1,297,001,769

8,343,842,941 5,218,860,111

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions 11
Current Liabilities 508,629,044 398,307,412
Provisions 165,793,257 162,186,950

674,422,301 560,494,362

Net Current Assets 7,669,420,640 4,658,365,749

Miscellaneous Expenditure 12 426,420 147,622,420
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Accounts 21

TOTAL 14,266,168,667 10,992,174,436

Schedules Nos. 1 to 12 and 20 & 21 form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE  YEAR  ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Sch.No. Current Year Previous  Year

INCOME
Sales 13 3,581,345,441 2,789,382,102

Other Income           14 187,210,613 3,768,556,054 31,499,598 2,820,881,700

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Goods Sold 15 428,888,869 345,240,380

Personnel Expenses           16 425,110,665 306,819,108

Administrative Expenses           17 611,989,780 397,388,969

Interest and Financial Charges (Net)           18 282,089,085          132,357,922

Depreciation 714,036,429          506,704,562

2,462,114,828 1,688,510,941

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,306,441,226 1,132,370,759

Tax Expenses           19 150,000,000 183,227,935

PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,156,441,226 949,142,824

Add /(Less) : Adjustments relating to (1,904,983) –

earlier years

NET PROFIT 1,154,536,243 949,142,824

Add : Balance brought forward from

previous year 1,388,835,038 900,679,164

Profit available for appropriation 2,543,371,281 1,849,821,988

Appropriations
Proposed Equity Dividend 23,553,370 137,601,564

Tax on Dividend 4,002,895 23,385,386

General Reserve - Transfer 300,000,000 300,000,000

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2,215,815,016 1,388,835,038

2,543,371,281 1,849,821,988

Earnings Per Share  (Rs.)
– Basic 9.80 8.28

– Diluted 8.93 7.35

Significant Accounting Policies           20
Notes to Accounts           21

Schedule Nos 13 to 21 form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.1: SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED: 330,000,000 330,000,000
165,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.2/- each
[Previous year 165,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.2/- each]
200,000 Preference shares of Rs.100/- each 20,000,000 20,000,000
[Previous year 200,000 Preference shares of Rs.100/- each]

TOTAL 350,000,000       350,000,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP
117,766,850 (Previous year 114,667,970) Equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully paid up.       235,533,700 229,335,940
[Of the above  -
i) 40,912,200 (Previous year 40,912,200) Equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully paid up were issued

pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of the erstwhile Cranes Software International
Limited with the company.

ii) 56,833,985 (Previous year 56,833,985) were issued & allotted as fully paid up Bonus shares
by capitalisation of Reserves.

iii) 30,98,880 (previous year NIL) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each fully paid-up were issued for
consideration other than Cash as part consideration for the acquisition of Cubeware GmbH,
by its wholly owned subsidiary Systat Software GmbH.]

TOTAL       235,533,700      229,335,940

SCHEDULE NO.2: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(a) Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 1,528,664,134 1,588,664,134

Add : Receipts on  issue of preferential allotment 381,162,240 –

1,909,826,374 1,588,664,134

Less: Transfer to FCCB Premium Redemption Reserve 60,000,000 60,000,000

1,849,826,374 1,528,664,134

(b) FCCB Premium Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance 120,000,000 60,000,000

Add: Transfer from Share Premium account 60,000,000 60,000,000

180,000,000 120,000,000

(c) General Reserve
Opening Balance 1,543,000,000 1,243,000,000
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 300,000,000 300,000,000

1,843,000,000 1,543,000,000
(d) Balance in profit and loss account 2,215,815,016 1,388,835,038

TOTAL     6,088,641,390 4,580,499,172

SCHEDULE NO.3: SECURED LOANS
From Banks
Working Capital Loans 1,801,101,388 1,661,069,128
Term Loans 1,464,797,448 590,940,174
Vehicle Loans 3,324,006 6,429,492
(For Security, refer Note No.21.4)

TOTAL     3,269,222,842 2,258,438,794

SCHEDULE NO.4: UNSECURED LOANS
From Banks
Short Term Loans 1,844,283,519     1,148,970,027
From Others 2,318,974,059 2,321,202,589

TOTAL     4,163,257,578     3,470,172,616
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

SCHEDULE NO 5 : FIXED ASSETS

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

COST AS ON ADDITIONS DELETIONS TOTAL AS ON UPTO For the year WITHDRAWN TOTAL UPTO AS ON  AS ON

April 1, 2008 March 31, 2009 April 1, 2008 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

LAND & BUILDING 44,104,262 66,982,121 – 111,086,383 – 801,583 – 801,583 110,284,800 44,104,262

FURNITURE & FIXTURES 43,761,175 23,023,094 – 66,784,269 13,725,444 3,783,496 – 17,508,940 49,275,329 30,035,731

COMPUTERS 120,813,248 13,346,286 25,988 134,133,546 73,411,285 11,712,022 1,565 85,121,742 49,011,804  47,401,963

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 4,018,494,537 513,994,713 – 4,532,489,250 1,404,991,161 693,266,900 – 2,098,258,061 2,434,231,189    2,613,503,376

PLANT & MACHINERY 29,811,127 34,031,452 56,250 63,786,329 5,625,792 2,632,015 10,102 8,247,705 55,538,624 24,185,335

VEHICLES 20,934,708 – 1,786,559  19,148,149 5,207,104 1,835,612 677,415 6,365,301 12,782,848 15,727,604

TECHNICAL BOOKS 101,079 – – 101,079 20,208 4,801 – 25,009 76,070 80,871

TOTAL           4,278,020,136 651,377,666 1,868,797 4,927,529,005 1,502,980,994 714,036,429 689,082 2,216,328,341 2,711,200,664 2,775,039,142

PREVIOUS YEAR 3,297,382,368 1,095,423,707 114,785,939 4,278,020,136 1,002,571,644 506,704,562 6,295,212 1,502,980,994 2,775,039,142 2,294,810,724
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.6: INVESTMENTS
Long-Term - Investment (Unquoted - at cost)
Subsidiaries
Systat Software, Inc. USA 185,117,768 185,117,768
974,166 Equity shares of face value USD 1/- each fully paid up
(Previous year 974,166 Equity shares of face value USD 1/- each fully paid up]

Systat Software Asia Pacific Limited 3,800,000 3,800,000
380,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
(Previous year 380,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)

Systat Software Gmbh-Germany 1,447,500 1,447,500
1 Equity Share of 25,000 Euros fully paid up
(Previous year 1 Equity share of 25,000 Euros fully paid up)

Cranes Software International Pte Limited - Singapore 4,430,582 4,430,582
165,692 Equity shares of Singapore Dollar 1/- each fully paid up.
(Previous year 165,692 Equity shares of Singapore Dollar 1/- each fully paid up)

Cranes Software  Inc (erstwhile NISA Software Inc) 450,072,825 450,072,825
26,91,855 Equity shares of USD 1 each fully paid up
(Previous year 26,91,885 Equity shares of USD 1 each fully paid up)

Tilak Auto Tech Private Limited 5,162,487 5,162,487
1,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,000 Equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up)

Analytix Systems Private Limited 63,000,000 63,000,000
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 20,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)

Caravel Info Systems Pvt Ltd 36,233,187 36,233,187
1,20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,20,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)

Proland Software Pvt Ltd 31,889,280 31,889,280
4,840 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 4,840 Equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up)

Esqube Communication Solutions Private Limited 17,977,989 17,977,989
8,942 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 8,942 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)

Others
S-Wave Systems Pvt. Ltd – 100,000
Nil (Previous Year 1,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)
Cranes Software Middle East LLC - UAE 1,786,172 1,786,172
147 Equity shares of UAE Dirham 1,000/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 147 Equity shares of UAE Dirham 1,000/- each fully paid up)

Current Investment (Quoted)
(Valued at lower of cost or fair  value)
Mutual Funds 353,517 330,858
(Refer Note No 21.7)

TOTAL       801,271,307      801,348,647
SCHEDULE NO.7: INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock - in - trade 13,816,078 11,676,206

TOTAL         13,816,078 11,676,206
SCHEDULE NO.8: SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured - Considered Good)
(a) Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 2,092,637,189 70,877,889
(b) Others debts 1,821,255,563 1,120,520,917

TOTAL     3,913,892,752 1,191,398,806
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.9: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(a) Balances with Scheduled Banks in  Indian Rupees

(i) Current Accounts 26,137,270 350,885,110

(ii) Deposit Accounts 2,383,226,643 2,358,706,735

(iii) Dividend Accounts 975,227 990,887

(b) Balances with Scheduled Banks in Foreign Currency

(i) Current Accounts 74,148 8,200,011

(c) Cash on Hand 176 587

TOTAL     2,410,413,464 2,718,783,330

SCHEDULE NO.10: LOANS AND ADVANCES
(unsecured, considered good)

(a) Loans and Advances to subsidiaries 960,196,671 1,059,978,431

(b) Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received 835,645,638 35,524,276

(c) Deposits 46,378,338 80,828,503

(d) Advance payment of tax (net) – 21,170,559

(e) MAT Credit Entitlement 163,500,000 99,500,000

TOTAL     2,005,720,647 1,297,001,769

SCHEDULE NO.11: CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(i) Sundry Creditors

Dues of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises (Refer Note No.21.8) – –

Dues of Others 492,606,575 389,784,463

Current Account with Directors 15,000,000 7,500,000

(ii)  Unclaimed Dividend 1,022,469 1,022,949

TOTAL       508,629,044 398,307,412

PROVISIONS
(a) Proposed Equity Dividend (including tax) 50,941,651 160,986,950

(b) Income Tax (Net of Advances) 44,569,606 –

(c) Fringe Benefit Tax (Net of Advances) 282,000 1,200,000

(d) Provision for warranty claims 70,000,000 –

TOTAL         165,793,257 162,186,950

SCHEDULE NO.12 : MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 147,622,420 307,520,936

Less : Written off during the year 147,196,000 159,898,516

TOTAL              426,420 147,622,420
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR  ENDED  MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE - 13: SALES
Software Sales & Services
Exports 3,028,625,219 2,066,993,887
Domestic 504,723,891 655,524,007

3,533,349,110 2,722,517,894
Software Training 47,996,331 66,864,208

TOTAL 3,581,345,441 2,789,382,102

SCHEDULE - 14: OTHER INCOME
Dividend received 22,660 887,677
Commission Received 4,795,291 7,709,814
Rent Received 1,407,756 –
Gain on Forex Transactions 180,984,906 10,191,250
Misc Income – 464,699
Income on Sale of Interest in Subsidiary – 12,246,158

TOTAL                       187,210,613 31,499,598

SCHEDULE -15: COST OF GOODS SOLD
Opening Stock 11,676,206 15,447,654
ADD: Purchases 403,353,000 309,821,928
ADD: Direct Expenses 27,675,741 31,647,004

442,704,947 356,916,586
LESS: Closing Stock 13,816,078 11,676,206

TOTAL 428,888,869 345,240,380

SCHEDULE -16: PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Salaries and Other Allowances 386,124,855 261,995,051
Contribution to Provident and other funds 23,361,434 25,464,112
Staff Welfare 15,624,376 19,359,945

TOTAL                       425,110,665 306,819,108

SCHEDULE -17: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General Expenses 293,522,251 105,030,418
Auditor’s Remuneration (Refer Note No. 21.11) 1,305,937 1,294,988
Sales Commission 1,444,219 23,570,347
Insurance 565,700 894,123
Office Rent 90,472,536 33,772,246
Electricity and Water Charges 11,755,450 9,730,710
Rates and Taxes 1,295,379 574,258
Director’s remuneration (Refer Note No. 21.2) 12,432,012 11,826,926
Travelling and Conveyance 44,130,562 42,892,137
Repairs and Maintenance (Refer Note No. 21.10) 3,108,771 3,248,900
Deferred Revenue Expenditure written off                        147,196,000 159,898,516
Commission  to Non-Whole Time Directors 4,200,000 4,200,000
Loss on Sale of Asset 560,963 455,400

TOTAL 611,989,780 397,388,969

SCHEDULE -18: INTEREST & FINANCIAL CHARGES (Net)
Fixed Loans 308,584,199 173,928,588
Others 175,894,464 161,240,845

484,478,663 335,169,433

Less : Interest received on Fixed Deposit [TDS :Rs.45,716,827] 202,389,578 202,811,511
[Previous Year TDS : Rs.42,115,670]

TOTAL 282,089,085 132,357,922

SCHEDULE -19: TAX EXPENSES
Income Tax 155,373,000 128,000,000
MAT Credit Entitlement (64,000,000) (99,500,000)
Deferred Tax 55,785,243 150,000,000
Fringe Benefit Tax 2,582,000 4,500,000
Taxation Adjustment of Previous year 214,757 117,935
Wealth Tax 45,000 110,000

TOTAL 150,000,000 183,227,935
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SCHEDULE NO. 20
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
20. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

20.1. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”)
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India.

20.2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in current & future periods.

20.3. Revenue Recognition
i. Revenue from sale of products is recognized, in accordance with the sales contract, on delivery of goods to the Customer.  Revenue

from product sales are shown net of taxes.
ii. Revenue on Software Development services comprises revenue priced on time and material and fixed-price contracts. Revenue

priced on time and material contracts are recognized as related services are performed. Revenue from fixed-price, fixed
time-frame contracts is recognized in accordance with the percentage of completion method.

iii. Revenue from Technical Service, Training, support and other services is recognized as the related services are performed over the
duration of the contract/course.

iv. Dividend is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established at the balance sheet date.

20.4. Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and the changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables.  The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are shown separately.

20.5. Fixed Assets and Capital Work-in-progress 
i. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.  Cost includes all expenses incurred to bring the assets to

its present location and condition. During the year exchange differences on translation of foreign currency loans obtained to
purchase fixed assets from countries outside India are recognized in Profit and Loss account.

ii. Interest on borrowed money allocated to and utilized for fixed assets, pertaining to the period up to the date the fixed asset is ready
for its intended use, is capitalized.

iii. Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding as of each balance sheet date and the cost of fixed assets not ready
for its intended use before such date are disclosed under Capital Work-in-progress.

20.6. Intangible Assets
i. All intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
ii. The cost of acquired intangible assets is the consideration paid for acquisition and other incidental costs incurred to bring the

intangible asset for its intended use.
iii. Internally generated intangible assets are valued at cost which were incurred during the development phase of intangibles which

comprises of expenditure on materials and services used or consumed, salaries and other employment related cost of personnel
engaged in development of intangible asset, other direct expenditures and overheads that are necessary for the generation of the
intangible asset and that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

iv. Interest on borrowed money allocated to and utilized for intangible assets, pertaining to the period up to the date the intangible asset
is ready for its intended use, is capitalized in accordance with Accounting Standard-16.

v. Amount paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets, which is not put to use as at reporting date and the cost of intangible assets
not ready for its intended use before such date are disclosed under Capital Work-in-progress.

20.7. Research and Development
i. The Company in association with the Centre for Sponsored Schemes and Projects of Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore has set

up a designing and testing laboratory. The Indian Institute of Science and the Company will jointly own the Intellectual Property rights

and patents for technologies and products developed by the laboratory.

41



Annual Report 2008-09

ii. The Company, also in association with Indian Institute of Science, and Society for Innovation and Development has entered into

Collaborative Research Programme called “Cranes –I I Sc” Research Programme.  The Parties shall be joint owners of any Intellectual

Property Rights and Inventions that may be realized through this programme.

iii. Research cost relating to the above are charged to Profit and Loss account and the expenditure incurred relating to the Development

phase are treated as advances in Capital Work-in-progress and will be capitalized when the intangible asset is ready for use as per

the criteria laid down by AS-26.

20.8. Depreciation and Amortization

i. Depreciation is provided on Straight Line method at the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. 

In respect of assets purchased / sold during the year, depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis.

ii. The Management estimates the useful life of Customized software/commercial rights procured for specific application as 3 years and

accordingly amortizes over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis.

iii. Depreciation on individual low cost assets (costing less than Rs.5,000) is provided for in full in the year of purchase irrespective of

date of installation.

iv. Other Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful life on a straight-line basis, commencing from

the date the asset is available to the Company for its use.

v. After recognition of impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the asset is on the revalued amount prospectively over the

remaining useful life of the asset.

20.9. Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date using internal and external sources, whether there is any indication that an asset (both

tangible and intangible) may be impaired.  If any such indications exist, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to is less than

its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is

recognized in the profit and loss account.  If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss

no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of

depreciated historical cost.

20.10. Inventories 

Inventories comprises of Third Party software products and Own software products

i. Own software products which are developed/being developed are valued at allocated cost on specific identification method or net

realizable value whichever is lower.

ii. Third party software products are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost formula used is weighted

average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost

necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is net of VAT credit.

20.11. Investments

Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on the management’s intention at the time of purchase.

i. Long term investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution in the value of such investments.  Diminution in value is

provided for where the management is of the opinion that the diminution is of permanent nature.

ii. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.  Any reduction in carrying amount and any reversals of such

reduction are charged or credited to the profit and loss account.

iii. Investments in Foreign Subsidiaries are reflected at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions.

20.12. Effect of Exchange Fluctuation on foreign currency transactions

i. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

ii. Exchange differences are recorded when the amount actually received on sales or actually paid when the expenditure is incurred,

is converted into Indian Rupees.

iii. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions are recognized as income or expense in the period in which

they arise.

iv. Period-end balances of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate. The resulting exchange

difference is recognized in the profit and loss account.
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v. Non – Monetary assets & liabilities are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

vi. Foreign currency translation differences relating to liabilities incurred for acquiring fixed assets are recognized in Profit and Loss account.

20.13. Employee Benefits

i. Post-employment benefit plans

Contributions to defined retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered

services entitling them to contributions. For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected

Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised

in full in the profit and loss account for the period in which they occur. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance

sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced

by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and

reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

ii. Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees

is recognised during the period when the employee renders the service. These benefits include compensated absences such as

paid annual leave, overseas social security contributions and performance incentives.

iii. Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee

renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

20.14.   Income Tax/ Deferred Tax

i. Current tax is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ii. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences that result

between the profit offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements.  Deferred tax in respect of timing difference

which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing

difference originate.  For this purpose the timing difference which originates first is considered to reverse first.  Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet

date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the profit and loss account in the year

of charge. Deferred tax assets on timing differences are recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.  Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the

appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each balance sheet date.

iii. Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of

adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal

income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the

future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably.

iv. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance taxes paid and

income tax provisions arising in the same tax jurisdiction.

v. The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relating to taxes on income levied by the  same governing

taxation laws.

20.15. Fringe Benefit Tax

Consequent to the introduction of Fringe Benefit tax effective April 1, 2005, in accordance with the guidance note on accounting for

Fringe Benefit Tax issued by the ICAI, the Company makes provision for Fringe Benefit Tax on accrual basis.

20.16. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event that probably requires

an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  A disclosure for a contingent liability is made

when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.  Where

there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made.
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20.17. Earnings per Share

i. Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earning available to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average

number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

ii. Diluted Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings available to existing and potential Equity Shareholders by

aggregate of the weighted average number of Equity Shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted

average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares (FCCB).    Dilutive

potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.

20.18. Leases

i. Lease arrangements where substantial risk and rewards incidental to ownership of on asset, vests with the lessor, such leases are

recognized as operating leases.

ii. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account.

SCHEDULE NO.21

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

21.1. Contingent liabilities not provided for and Capital commitments

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

a. Contingent liabilities not provided for

I. Outstanding guarantees and counter guarantees 2449.91 466.38

II. Bills discounted 535.71 –

b. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 490.82 14.96

debts on Tax matters in dispute under appeal

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 13.29 49.18

on capital account not provided for

21.2 Managerial Remuneration

The aggregate managerial remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the directors including managing director is :

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Managing Director                

– Basic  Salary 1.20 1.15

– House Rent Allowance 0.48 0.46

– Special Allowance 1.22 1.12

– Contribution to Provident Fund 0.14 0.14

– Commission 1.10 1.10

Total Remuneration (a) 4.14 3.97

Whole-time Directors   

– Basic  Salary 2.40 2.27

– House Rent Allowance 0.96 0.91

– Special Allowance 2.44 2.21

– Contribution to Provident Fund 0.29 0.27

– Commission 2.20 2.20

Total Remuneration (b) 8.29 7.86

Total Managerial Remuneration        ( a + b ) 12.43 11.83

Computation of Net profit in accordance with section 349 of the companies Act,1956 and Calculation of Commission payable to Non whole time
directors as per Sec 309(4) of the Companies Act, 1956.
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(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year

Profit before taxation 1306.44
Add:
Directors remuneration 9.13
Provision for commission payable to Directors 7.50
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) as per Sec. 350 of the Companies Act 1956 0.56
Depreciation as per profit and loss account 714.04
Less:
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund –
Profit on sale of interest in subsidiary –
Depreciation as per Sec. 350 of the Companies Act 1956 (714.04)

Net profit as per Sec 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 1323.63
@ 1% of Net profit U/s 349 of the Companies Act 1956. 13.24

Commission to Non Whole time Directors provided for (Previous year 4.20) 4.20
Commission to Whole time Directors provided for (Previous year 3.30) 3.30

21.3.     Activities in foreign currency

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Earnings in Foreign Currency – FOB value of exports 3028.63 2066.99
Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency 1052.64 2952.88
Capital Goods  (valued on CIF basis) 553.57 2533.11
Trading Goods (valued on CIF basis) 241.25 293.30
Travelling, Boarding & Lodging Expenses 10.45 5.99
Marketing Expenses 117.65 8.80
Legal/Professional/Consultancy Expenses 3.22 35.68
Dividend 0.96 1.90
Interest 80.83 43.46
Commission & Brokerage 0 28.20
Others 44.71 2.44

21.4. Security for borrowings
i. Working Capital and Term Loans:  Bank finances are secured by hypothecation of stocks of software, book

debts and collaterally secured by properties; personally guaranteed by Whole time Directors and also have additional collateral security
by way of pledge of promoters share for a part amount.

ii. Vehicle Loans: Finance for purchase of vehicles are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles.

iii. Finances availed from UPS Capital Business Credit are personally guaranteed by Whole time Directors.

21.5. Debtors and Creditors; Loans and Advances
Periodically, the Company evaluates all Debtors and Creditors balances.  However, some of these are subject to confirmation.

All Current Assets, Loans and advances, have at least the value as stated in the Balance Sheet if realized in the ordinary course of the
Business.

21.6.1. Dues from Subsidiary Companies are as under:

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Caravel Info Systems Pvt. Ltd., 1.01 0
Cranes Software International Pte. Ltd., 0.94 0
Cranes Software UK Ltd (Systat software UK Ltd) 15.24 14.20
Dunn Solutions Group Inc., 12.34 0
Esqube Communication Solutions Pvt Ltd 0.03 0
Engineering Technology Associates Inc., USA 6.13 0
Proland Software Pvt Ltd 0.31 0
Systat Software Gmbh, Germany 14.39 27.35
Systat Software Inc, USA 352.25 171.70

Total 402.64 213.25
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21.6.2. Loans & advances include, due from Companies under the same management, as under (Disclosure required by Clause 32 of
the Listing Agreement):

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Maximum amount Previous Maximum amount
outstanding during Year outstanding

the current year during the
previous year

Cranes Software International Pte Ltd-Singapore 51.12 51.12 5.07 5.07
Cranes  Software Inc (NISA Software Inc) 39.36 179.58 124.83 143.69
Tilak Auto Tech Pvt. Ltd 19.82 19.82 15.90 15.90
Cranes Software UK Ltd – – 13.79 13.79
Systat Software GmbH, Germany 0.58 0.58 6.00 6.00
Systat Software Inc USA 682.90 682.90 649.39 649.39
Proland Software Pvt Ltd 3.94 15.22 0.07 0.07
Esqube Communication Solutions Pvt Ltd 24.69 24.69 14.90 14.90
Caravel Info System Pvt Ltd 8.68 16.84 16.84 16.84
Systat Software Asia Pacific Limited 9.38 9.38 – –

Total 840.47 1000.13 846.79 865.65

21.7. Current Investments (Quoted) - In Money market Mutual funds

(Rs. in million)

PARTICULARS No. of Units Face value (Rs.) Current year Previous year

ING Vysya  Liquid Fund Institutional - Daily Dividend Reinvestment 35184 10 0.35 0.33
ING Vysya  Floating Rate Fund - Daily Dividend 165 10 0.00 0.00

Aggregate Fair value of quoted investments 0.35 0.33
Aggregate cost of quoted investment 0.35 0.33

21.8. Dues to Small-scale industrial undertakings
i. As at March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, the Company has no outstanding dues exceeding Rs. 1 Lakh for more than 30 days to

Small Scale Industrial undertaking.

ii. There are no micro and small enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2009.

This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

21.9. Quantitative Details
The Quantitative details of sales and certain information as required under paragraphs 3,4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI to the

Companies Act, 1956 are as follows:

Current year                            

Item Description Opening Stock Receipts Issues Balance as on
April 1,  2008 March 31,2009

Matlab Media CD Kits 0 526 524 2

Dongles 17 50 56 11

Matlab 89 451 478 62

Simulink 42 247 246 43

Toolboxes 505 711 878 338

DSP Starter kits 15 1224 1005 234

Calculators – TI 77 2506 2425 158

BWD 5399 3017 1429 6987

Dspace 0 27 27 0

Maple Soft 0 32 12 20

Total 6144 8791 7080 7855

46



Annual Report 2008-09

Previous Year

Item Description Opening Stock Receipts Issues Balance as on

April 1,  2007 March 31,2008

Matlab Media CD Kits 12 828 840 0

Dongles 0 404 387 17

Matlab 68 691 670 89

Simulink 33 394 385 42

Toolboxes 880 2873 3248 505

DSP Starter kits 209 996 1190 15

Statistics 222 0 222 0

Calculators – TI 30 1547 1500 77

BWD 0 5880 481 5399

Dspace 0 39 39 0

Mentorgraphic 0 3 3 0

Lyrtech 0 4 4 0

Total 1,454 13,659 8,969 6,144

The Company is in the business of software development and trading. Hence information on Licensed and installed capacity is not applicable.

21.10. Repairs and Maintenance includes (Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(i) Building 1.19 0.63

(ii) Machinery 0.30 0.75

(iii) Others 1.62 1.87

Total 3.11 3.25

21.11. Details of Auditors remuneration                                                                           

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Statutory Audit 0.45 0.45

Out of Pocket Expenses 0.05 0.03

Other services 0.81 0.82

Total 1.31 1.30

21.12. Dividends remitted in foreign currencies        

Number of No of Equity Gross Amount of

Non-Resident Shares Held Dividend

Equity Shareholders

(Rs. in Million)

2008-09   2007-08

Dividend for 2007-08

Paid in 2008-09 1  8,00,200  0.96 1.90

(Previous Year 2) (Previous Year 1,900,200)
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21.13. Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share

(Rs. in Million except share data)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders (A) 1154.54 949.14

Adjustment for interest on Foreign Currency convertible Bonds(FCCB) net of Taxes (B) 69.02 35.56

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment

for diluted earnings) (A+B) 1223.56 984.70

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding (C) 117.77 114.67

Add: Effect of dilutive issues of shares (D) 19.24 19.24

Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares

outstanding (C+D) 137.01 133.91

Basic Earnings per share (A/C) 9.80 8.28

Diluted Earnings per share (A+B)/(C+D) 8.93 7.35

Nominal Value per share 2.00 2.00

21.14. Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred taxes at the year end are attributable to the following:

                                                         (Rs. in Million)

Deferred Tax Asset Current Year Previous Year

Provision for Retirement Benefits 2.07 0.46

Deferred revenue expenditure 4.58 –

(A)        Total 6.65 0.46

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Difference between book and tax depreciation 516.16 449.62

Deferred revenue expenditure – 4.56

(B)       Total 516.16 454.18

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (A-B) 509.51 453.72

21.15. Gratuity  (Rs. in Million)

As at
March 31, 2009

(i) Change in Benefit Obligations:

Projected Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year (April 1, 2008)                   18.21

Service Cost                    4.35

Interest Cost                     1.33

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations                     (7.94)

Benefit paid                   (0.78)

Projected Benefit Obligation, at the end of the year                    15.17

(ii) Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year (April 1,2008) 13.68

Expected return on Plan Assets  1.09

Employer’s contributions  7.45

Benefit paid  (0.78)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets (2.15)

Fair value of Plan Assets, at the end of the year  19.29

Excess of (obligation over plan assets) / plan assets over obligation (4.12)

(Accrued Liability) / Prepaid Benefit  (4.12)
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(iii) Net Gratuity and other cost for the year ended March 31, 2009

Service Cost  4.35

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation  1.33

Expected return on Plan Assets (1.09)

Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year (5.79)

Net Gratuity and other cost (1.20)

Actual Return on Plan Assets (3.24)

(iv) Category of Assets as at March 31, 2009

Insurer Managed Funds  15.17

Total  15.17

(v) Assumptions used in accounting for the Gratuity Plan

Discount Rate  7.50%

Salary escalation rate  5.00%

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets  8.00%

21.16. Obligations towards long term, non-cancellable  operating leases
The Company has taken on non-cancellable operating leases certain offices, the future minimum lease payments in respect of which, as
at the close of the year are as follows -

(Rs. in Million)

Lease obligation Current Year Previous Year

Due not later than one year 13.45 25.04
Due later than one year but not later than five years Nil 27.12
Due after five years Nil Nil

Total 13.45 52.16

These lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period at the end of the non-cancellable period.

The rental expenses in respect of operating leases recognized in the profit and loss account are Rs.90.47 Million for the year ended March 31, 2009.
(Previous year Rs.33.77 Million).

21.17. Preferential Issue
The Company issued 1,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.2 each at a premium of Rs. 108 per share on preferential basis to strategic investors
on September 22, 2006 amounting to Rs. 110 million.  During October 2005, the Company had raised 1,200,000 equity shares of Rs.10
each at a premium of Rs.890 per share to promoters and strategic investors.  Pending utilization, the aggregate amount of Rs.1190.00
Million is forming part of Balances with Scheduled Banks in Indian Rupees – Deposit Accounts as on March 31, 2009.

21.18. Foreign currency convertible Bonds
The Company issued and allotted on March 17, 2006 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (Considered as non-Monetary liability) for
Euro 42 Million (Equivalent to Rs. 2,270.10 Million) bearing an interest at 2.5% per annum payable half yearly.  The bonds are convertible
at any time on and after April 27, 2006 and till close of business on March 11, 2011 and were convertible into shares or GDRs at an  initial
conversion price of Rs. 143.293 per share with a fixed rate of  exchange on conversion of Euro 1.00 = Rs. 52.6828. The outstanding
bonds are redeemable at a premium of 12.833% on March 18, 2011.  Further, based on the relevant clause of the issue document,
conversion price has now been refixed at Rs.115.  During the year ended 31 March 2009 there has been no conversion of the Bonds
into Shares. If the outstanding bonds as on March 31, 2009 are converted into equity shares or GDRs, then the share capital of the
Company will increase by 19,240,675 shares.

Proportionate Premium payable on redemption of FCCB of Rs 60 Million (Previous Year Rs.60 Million) has been transferred to FCCB
Redemption reserve during the year out of share premium account.  In the event that the conversion option is exercised by the holders
of FCCB in the future, the amount of premium charged to the share premium account will be suitably adjusted in the respective years.

21.19. Research & Development
Research & development expenditure recognized as expenses during the year amounted to Rs.3.71 million.
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21.20. Related Party Disclosures

Current Year (Rs. in Million)

Key Relatives of Total Related
Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Management Key Parties

Personnel Management
Personnel

Purchases of Goods/software 27.45 – – – 27.45
Sales of Goods/Software 87.30 – – – 87.30
Purchase of Fixed Assets – – – – –
Sale if Fixed Assets 0.03 – – – 0.03
Investment in Subsidiary – – – – –
Rendering of Services 147.68 – – – 147.68
Receiving of Services 115.86 – – – 115.86
Loans/advances/equity contributions given 188.94 – – – 188.94
Loans/advances/equity contributions taken 60.45 – – – 60.45
Directors Remuneration – – 9.13 – 9.13
Commission to Directors – – 3.30 – 3.30
Balance as on 31.03.09 receivable 1225.64 – – – 1225.64
Balance as on 31.03.09 payable 80.09 – 4.75 – 84.84

Previous Year (Rs. in Million)

Key Relatives of Total Related
Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Management Key Parties

Personnel Management
Personnel

Purchases of goods/software 32.19 – – – 32.19
Sales of Goods – – – – –
Purchase of Fixed Assets – – – – –
Investment in Subsidiary 519.32 – – – 519.32
Rendering of Services 199.44 – – – 199.44
Receiving of Services 52.37 – – – 52.37
Loans/advances/equity contributions given 373.94 – – – 373.94
Loans/advances/equity contributions taken – – – – –
Directors Remuneration – – 8.53 – 8.53
Commission to Directors – – 3.30 – 3.30
Balance as on 31.03.08 receivable 1060.04 – – – 1060.04
Balance as on 31.03.08 payable – – 3.30 – 3.30

Note:
Names of related parties and description of relationship

Holding Company Nil

Subsidiaries:
1. Systat Software Inc., USA
2. Systat Software Asia Pacific Limited
3. Cranes Software International Pte. Ltd, Singapore
4. Systat Software GmbH, Germany
5. Cranes Software Inc (NISA Software Inc., USA)
6. Analytix Systems Private Ltd
7. Tilak Autotech Private Ltd
8. Caravel Info Systems Pvt. Ltd.,
9. Proland Software Pvt. Ltd.,
10. Esqube Communication Solutions Pvt. Ltd.,

Step  Subsidiaries:
1. Cranes Software UK Ltd.( Systat Software UK Ltd)
2. Dunn Solutions Group Inc.
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3. Engineering Technology Associates Inc
4. Engineering Technology Associates (Shanghai) Inc., China
5. Cubeware GmbH

Key Management Personnel Mr.Asif Khader
                                                Mr.Mukkaram Jan
                                                 Mr.Mueed Khader 

Relatives of Key Management Nil
Personnel

Other Related Parties                     
Orca Infotech Private Limited
K&J Holdings Private Limited
K &J Telecom Private Limited (Previously known as Jansons Telecom Pvt. Ltd.)
Jansons Land & Property Development Private Limited
SPSS South Asia Private Limited
Keysoft Solutions Private Limited
Spice Capital Fund Private Limited
Sea Equity Enterprises Private Limited

In respect of the above parties, there is no provision for doubtful debts for the financial year and no amount has been written off/written back during
the year in respect of debts due from/to them.

21.21. Segment Reporting
The Company has identified geographic segments as its primary segment and Business segments as its secondary segment.
Primary Segments - a) Exports and  b) Domestic

Secondary Segments - a) Proprietary Products and Services and    b) Product Alliances

  

Primary Segment Information - Geographical Segment

(Rs. in Million)

 Current Year  Previous Year

Sl.No. Particulars  Export  Domestic  Total  Export  Domestic  Total

1 Segment Revenue: 3,028.63 552.72     3,581.35       2,066.99          772.39           2,789.38

2 Segment Results 1,303.23 98.09     1,401.32       1,055.08          209.65          1,264.73

Other Income           185.31                          –

Operating Profit       1,586.63            1,264.73

Interest Expenses           282.09                132.36

Profit Before Tax       1,304.54             1,132.37

Tax expenses           150.00                183.23

Profit after tax   1154.54               949.14

3 Segment Assets 9,890.24 3,675.26   13,565.50       8,231.28       2,743.76         10,975.04

Total Assets     14,940.59          11,552.67

Segment Liabilities  64.88 11.45           76.33             40.57             10.14                 50.71

Total Liabilities           674.42            1,014.22

Segment Capital Employed

(Segment Assets –

Segment Liabilities) 9,825.36 3,663.81   13,489.17       8,190.71       2,733.62         10,924.33

4 Segment Capital Expenditure 552.08 97.43         649.51          810.61          284.81           1,095.42

5 Segment Depreciation 607.04 107.00         714.04          473.33          33.37              506.70 

51



Annual Report 2008-09

Secondary Segment Information - Business Segment

(Rs. in Million)

Current Year Previous Year

Proprietary Product Proprietary Product
SL.No. Particulars products and Alliances products Alliances

services   and services

1. Segment Revenue 3,063.17 518.18 2,190.46 598.92
2. Segment Results 1,331.26 70.06 1,201.87 62.86
3. Segment Assets 12,624.25 941.25 10,426.28 548.76
4 Capital Expenditure 506.62 142.89 860.23 235.19

21.22. Acquisitions / Divestments
During the year, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary Systat Software Gmbh acquired 100% of the shares of
Cubeware Gmbh

21.23. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For S.Janardhan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore

Date: June 30, 2009
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I Registration Details

Registration #  3 1 6 2 1 State code 0 8

Balance sheet date 3 1 0 3 0 9

II Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public issue N i l Rights issue N i l

Bonus issue N i l Private placement/Preferential issue 3 0 9 8 8 8 0

III Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total liabilities 1 4 2 6 6 1 6 9 Total assets 1 4 2 6 6 1 6 9

Sources of funds

Paid up capital 2 3 5 5 3 4 Reserves & Surplus 6 0 8 8 6 4 1

Secured Loans 3 2 6 9 2 2 3 Unsecured loans 4 1 6 3 2 5 8

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 5 0 9 5 1 3

Application of funds

Net fixed assets 5 7 9 5 0 5 1 Investments 8 0 1 2 7 1

Net current assets 7 6 6 9 4 2 1 Miscellaneous expenditure 4 2 6

* Including capital work in progress

IV Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover 3 7 6 8 5 5 6 Total expenditure 2 4 6 2 1 1 5

(Please tick appropriate box + for profit, - for loss)

Profit / Loss before tax 1 3 0 6 4 4 1 Profit / Loss after tax 1 1 5 6 4 4 1

Earnings per share in Rs. Dividend rate % 1 0 %

– Basic 9 . 8 0

– Diluted 8 . 9 3

V Generic names of three principal products / services of the Company (As per monetary terms)

Item code # (ITC Code) 8 5 2 4 9 0 0 9

Product description S o f t w a r e

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009

+ +
√ √
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before taxation 1,306,441,226 1,132,370,759

Adjustments for
Profit / Loss on sale of Investments / assets               560,963 (11,790,758)

Foreign Exchange Loss (Net) 7,071,751 5,531,936

Depreciation and amortization 714,036,429 506,704,562

Preliminary expenses 147,196,000 159,898,516

Dividend / interest income (Net) (202,412,238) (203,699,188)

Interest expense on borrowings 484,478,663 335,169,433

Operating profit before working capital changes      2,457,372,974 1,924,185,260

Adjustments for working capital
Inventory (2,139,872) 3,771,448

Debtors (2,722,493,945) (81,449,814)

Loans and advances (708,718,878) (181,584,274)

Current liabilities 110,322,112 186,322,917

Cash generated from operations (865,657,790) 1,851,245,537

Adjustments
Direct Taxes paid (17,531,865) (34,678,117)

Net cash from Operating Activities (848,125,924) 1,816,567,420

Cash flows from investing activities

Investments in Subsidiaries – (519,316,656)

Proceeds from sale of Investments 77,340 74,934,559

Dividend / Interest received 202,412,238 203,699,188

Proceeds from sale of Fixed assets 618,752 108,035,327

Acquisition of property, fixed assets (including advances)       (738,068,824) (2,201,318,870)

Net cash from Investing Activities (534,960,494) (2,333,966,452)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend and Dividend Tax (137,602,044) (133,267,189)

Interest on borrowed funds (484,478,663) (335,169,433)

Secured Loans / Borrowings 1,010,784,048 791,514,304

Unsecured Loans 693,084,963 322,931,918

Net cash from Financing Activities 1,081,788,304 646,009,600
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (301,298,115) 128,610,568
Exchange fluctuation difference on translation of (7,071,751) (5,531,936)

foreign currency cash & Cash equivalents

Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,718,783,330 2,595,704,698
Closing cash and cash equivalents 2,410,413,464 2,718,783,330

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,1956 RELATING TO COMPANYS’ INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

Name of the  Systat Systat Software Systat Software Cranes Caravel Info Cranes Software Tilak Analytix Proland Esqube
Subsidiary Company Software Inc Asia Pacific Ltd Software Systems Pvt.Ltd Inc (Consolidated Autotech Systems Software Communication

GmbH (Consolidated International with Dunn Pvt.Ltd Pvt.Ltd Pvt.Ltd Solutions Pvt.Ltd
(Consolidated with Pte. Ltd Solutions Group

with Cranes Software Inc, Engg.
Cubeware UK Ltd) Technology

GmbH) Associates Inc
& China)

Financial period ended  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009  31.3.2009

a) No. of shares held 1 974,166 380,000 165,692 120,000 2,691,855 1,000 20,000 4,840 8,942

b) Face value of per share EURO 25,000 USD 1 INR 10 SGD 1 INR 10 USD 1 INR 100 INR 10 INR 100 INR 10

c) Extent of interest as at 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 76%
year end

The Net aggregate amount of
Profits /(losses)  of the subsidiary
for the current period so far as it
concerns the members of the
holding company
a) dealt with or provided for in – – – – – – – – – –

the accounts of the holding
company

b) Not dealt with or provided for EURO (509,074) USD (1,914,029) INR (10,285,690) SGD 459,058 INR (17,047,502) USD (579,025) INR (5,333,233) INR (19,579) INR   (3,135,540) INR (4,547,200)
in the accounts of the
holding company

Net aggregate  Profits / (losses)
for the previous financial years
of the Subsidiary so far as it
concerns the members of the
holding company
a) Dealt with or provided for in – – – – – – – – – –

the accounts of the holding
company

b) Not dealt with or provided EURO (102,490) USD (1,553,731) INR 1,833,335   SGD 677 INR (1,160,372) USD (365,150) INR (9,174,584) INR (57,020) INR (1,534,530) INR (425,197)
for in the accounts of the
holding company

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Bangalore Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan
Date: June 30, 2009 Managing Director Director
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AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of M/s Cranes Software International Limited, Bangalore and its subsidiaries as at

31st March, 2009, and Consolidated Profit and Loss account and Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our  responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in India.  These standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects,

in accordance with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatements.  An audit includes, examining on test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

We report that consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with requirements of

Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of the

separate audited financial statements of M/s Cranes Software International Limited and its subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial

Statements (Refer Note No.1 in Notes forming part of Account for the year ended March 31, 2009).

Based on our audit  and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a. In the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2009;

b. In the case of Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the consolidated profits of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended on that

date; and

c. In the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statements, of the consolidated cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended on

that date.

For  S.JANARDHAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Balakrishna S Bhat

Bangalore Partner

June 30, 2009 Membership No.202976
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Sch.No. Current Year Previous  Year

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 1 235,533,700 229,335,940
Reserves and Surplus 2 6,425,445,332 4,679,383,459

6,660,979,032 4,908,719,399
Minority Interest _ 1,054,247

Loan Funds
Secured Loans 3 3,957,329,705 2,258,438,793
Unsecured Loans 4 4,281,125,144         3,589,250,678

8,238,454,849 5,847,689,471

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 578,607,481 525,509,056

TOTAL 15,478,041,362 11,282,972,173

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 5 6,364,891,988 5,228,956,392
Less : Accumulated Depreciation 2,515,170,822 1,746,581,632
Net Block 3,849,721,166 3,482,374,760
Add : Capital Work in Progress 3,389,878,465 3,166,623,506

7,239,599,631 6,648,998,266

Goodwill on consolidation 2,158,210,755 779,937,348

Investments 6 3,893,566 2,222,530

Current Assets, Loans & Advances
Inventories 7 37,015,765 16,364,372
Sundry Debtors 8 3,794,969,538 1,550,169,629
Cash and Bank Balances 9 2,500,985,179 2,808,739,168
Loans and Advances 10 1,358,873,642 400,532,672

7,691,844,124 4,775,805,841

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions 11
Current Liabilities 1,445,341,150 926,237,157
Provisions 178,874,110 162,441,787

1,624,215,260 1,088,678,944

Net Current Assets 6,067,628,864 3,687,126,897

Miscellaneous Expenditure 12 8,708,546 164,687,132
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes to Consolidated Accounts 21

TOTAL 15,478,041,362 11,282,972,173

Schedules Nos. 1 to 12 and 20 to 21 form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Sch.No. Current Year Previous  Year

INCOME
Sales 13 5,087,925,452 3,952,448,782
Other Income 14       200,632,482 33,975,179

5,288,557,934 3,986,423,961

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Goods Sold 15     1,122,213,514      792,309,459
Personnel Expenses 16       804,366,475 525,226,251
Administrative Expenses 17       959,994,358 631,057,706
Interest and Financial Charges 18       300,181,589 133,703,233
Depreciation 768,990,701 570,220,990
Depreciation written back – (1,876,821)

3,955,746,637 2,650,640,818

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS     1,332,811,297 1,335,783,143
Add : Profit on Sale of interest in Subsidiary – 5,948,124

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  1,332,811,297 1,341,731,267
Less : Tax Expenses 19 117,810,226 191,971,281

PROFIT AFTER TAX  1,215,001,071 1,149,759,986
Add /(Less) : Prior period adjustments (1,878,895) 52,427

PROFIT AFTER TAX AND PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS    1,213,122,176 1,149,707,559
Add /(Less) : Share of Minority Interest 1,054,247 102,025

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS      1,214,176,423 1,149,809,584
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 1,535,596,144 846,773,510

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION      2,749,772,567 1,996,583,094

Appropriations
Proposed Equity Dividend 23,553,370 137,601,564
Tax on Dividend 4,002,895 23,385,386
Transfer to General Reserve 300,000,000 300,000,000
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2,422,216,302 1,535,596,144

2,749,772,567 1,996,583,094

Earnings Per Share
(Face Value of Rs. 2/- each)
– Basic 10.30 10.03
– Diluted 9.36 8.85

Significant Accounting Policies 20
Notes on Consolidated Accounts 21

Schedule Nos 13 to 21 form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.1 SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

165,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 330,000,000 330,000,000

[Previous year 165,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each]

200,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 20,000,000 20,000,000

[Previous year 200,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each]

TOTAL                350,000,000 350,000,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP

117,766,850 (Previous year 114,667,970 ) Equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully

paid up [Of the above 40,912,200 (Previous year 40,912,200) Equity shares of

Rs.2/- each fully paid up issued pursuant to the scheme  of amalgamation of the

erstwhile Cranes Software International Limited] 235,533,700 229,335,940

(Of the above 56,833,985 were issued & allotted as fully paid up Bonus share by

Capitalisation of Reserves)

TOTAL                235,533,700 229,335,940

SCHEDULE NO.2: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve 576,353 576,353

Share Premium Account

Opening Balance 1,528,664,134 1,588,664,134

Add : Receipts on  issue of preferential allotment 381,162,240 –

1,909,826,374 1,588,664,134

Less: Transfer to FCCB Premium Redemption Reserve 60,000,000 60,000,000

1,849,826,374 1,528,664,134

FCCB Premium Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance 120,000,000 60,000,000

Add: Transfer from Share Premium account 60,000,000 60,000,000

180,000,000 120,000,000

General Reserve

Opening Balance 1,543,000,000 1,243,000,000

Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 300,000,000 300,000,000

1,843,000,000 1,543,000,000

Foreign Currency Translation reserve 129,826,303 (48,453,172)

Balance in profit and loss account 2,422,216,302 1,535,596,144

TOTAL             6,425,445,332 4,679,383,459

SCHEDULE NO.3: SECURED LOANS

From Banks

Working Capital Loans 2,214,909,084 1,661,069,127

Term Loans 1,738,773,955 590,940,174

Vehicle Loans 3,646,666 6,429,492

(For Security, refer Note No 21.3 ) TOTAL             3,957,329,705 2,258,438,793
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PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.4: UNSECURED LOANS
From Banks
Short Term Loans 1,844,283,520 1,148,970,025

(For Security, refer Note No.21.3)
From Others 2,436,841,624 2,440,280,653

TOTAL             4,281,125,144 3,589,250,678
SCHEDULE NO.6: INVESTMENTS
Long-Term Investment (unquoted)
(valued a cost)

(i) in Government Securities

National Savings Certificate 5,500 5,500

(ii) in trade

Cranes Software Middle East LLC UAE 1,786,172 1,786,172

147 Equity Shares of UAE Dirham 1,000/- each fully paid up

[Previous year 147 Equity shares of UAE Dirhams 1000 each fully paid]

S.Wave Systems Private Limited

Current Year (Nil)                      100,000

(Previous Year 1,000 Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid)

Current Investment (Quoted)
(Valued at lower of cost or fair  value)

Investment - Germany 1,748,376 –

Mutual Funds 353,518 330,858

(For Security, refer Note No. 21.6)

TOTAL 3,893,566 2,222,530

SCHEDULE NO.7: INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Stock - in - trade 37,015,765 16,364,372

TOTAL                  37,015,765 16,364,372

SCHEDULE NO.8: SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured - Considered Good)

Outstanding for period exceeding six months 2,099,274,532 71,933,524

Other debts 1,695,695,006 1,478,236,105

TOTAL 3,794,969,538 1,550,169,629
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SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

SCHEDULE NO 5 : FIXED ASSETS

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

COST AS ON ADDITIONS TRANSFER DELETIONS TOTAL AS ON UPTO For the year TRANSFER WITHDRAWN TOTAL UPTO AS ON  AS ON

April 1, 2008 March 31, 2009 April 1, 2008 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

LAND & BUILDINGS       44,104,262    66,982,121                –                  –      111,086,383                         –          801,583 –                     –            801,583     110,284,800       44,104,262

FURNITURE & FIXTURES       61,989,681    23,553,780 866,800 514,729       85,895,532  25,015,190 5,186,455 39,739 443,450       29,797,934      56,097,598       36,974,491

COMPUTERS      161,118,039    19,729,918 1,688,581          115,558      182,420,980 102,306,088    18,413,886 546,350 31,422     121,234,902      61,186,078      58,811,951

COMPUTER SOFTWARE   4,899,457,152   698,755,587 277,064,374 – 5,875,277,113 1,604,893,936 733,549,514 107,334 –  2,338,550,784 3,536,726,3293,294,563,216

PLANT & MACHINERY 38,998,601 34,872,435 15,832,797 993,952 88,709,881 8,414,795 8,980,026 219,340 161,987 17,452,174 71,257,707 30,583,806

VEHICLE 23,288,657 – – 1,786,558       21,502,099 5,951,623 2,059,237                –            677,415         7,333,445       14,168,654      17,337,034

TOTAL   5,228,956,392   843,893,841 295,452,552      3,410,797    6,364,891,988 1,746,581,632  768,990,701              912,763      1,314,274   2,515,170,822  3,849,721,166  3,482,374,760

PREVIOUS YEAR 3,472,866,338 1,928,136,259 (52,406,815) 119,639,390 5,228,956,392 1,145,219,710 570,220,990 39,440,948 8,300,016 1,746,581,632 3,482,374,760 2,327,646,628
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PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE NO.9: CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(i) Balances with Scheduled Banks in  Indian Rupees:

Current Accounts 29,414,273 359,595,726
Deposit Accounts 2,386,609,362 2,361,590,949
Dividend Accounts 975,227 990,887

(ii) Balances with Scheduled Banks in Foreign Currency
Current Accounts 83,869,677 86,550,404
Deposit Accounts 457 –

2,500,868,996 2,808,727,966

(iii) Cash on Hand 116,183 11,202

TOTAL             2,500,985,179 2,808,739,168

SCHEDULE NO.10: LOANS AND ADVANCES
(unsecured, considered good)
(i) Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received 1,139,411,908 191,565,381
(ii) Deposits 52,328,579 88,296,732
(iii) Advance Tax ( Net of Provisions ) 3,633,155 21,170,559
(iv) MAT Credit Entitlement 163,500,000 99,500,000

TOTAL 1,358,873,642 400,532,672

SCHEDULE NO.11: CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
(i) Sundry Creditors

Dues of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises – _
Dues of Other Creditors 1,429,318,681 917,714,208

(ii) Current Account with to Directors 15,000,000 7,500,000
(iii) Unclaimed Dividend 1,022,469 1,022,949

TOTAL 1,445,341,150 926,237,157

PROVISIONS:
(i) Proposed Equity Dividend(including tax) 50,941,651 160,986,950
(ii) Income Tax (net of advances) 54,027,533 –
(iii) Provisions for warranty claims 70,000,000 –
(iv) Gratuity and other employee related provision 3,295,530 –
(v) Fringe Benefit Tax 609,396 1,454,837

TOTAL 178,874,110 162,441,787

SCHEDULE NO.12 : MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 164,687,132 309,388,136

Add : Additions during the year – 17,064,712
164,687,132 326,452,848

Less : Written off during the year 155,978,586 161,765,716
TOTAL 8,708,546 164,687,132
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR  ENDED  MARCH 31, 2009

(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

SCHEDULE - 13: SALES
Software Sales & Services:
Exports 4,508,582,741 3,198,449,801
Domestic 531,346,380 687,134,773

5,039,929,121 3,885,584,574
Software Training 47,996,331 66,864,208

 TOTAL 5,087,925,452 3,952,448,782
SCHEDULE - 14: OTHER INCOME
Dividend received 22,660 887,677
Commission Received 4,795,291 7,709,814
Income on Sale of Interest in Subsidiary – 12,246,158
Gain on Forex Transactions 182,781,648 10,191,250
Miscellaneous Income 13,032,883 2,940,280

TOTAL  200,632,482 33,975,179
SCHEDULE -15: COST OF GOODS SOLD
Opening Stock 16,364,372 17,796,462
ADD: Purchases 387,997,823 380,947,054
ADD: Direct Expenses 754,867,084 409,930,315

1,159,229,279 808,673,831
LESS: Closing Stock 37,015,765 16,364,372

TOTAL 1,122,213,514 792,309,459

SCHEDULE -16: PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Salaries 726,649,090 455,250,716
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 29,137,090 32,099,681
Staff Welfare 48,580,295 37,875,854

TOTAL 804,366,475 525,226,251
SCHEDULE -17: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General Expenses 406,063,785 149,112,724
Auditors Remuneration 11,768,103 4,231,967
Sales Commission 12,995,441 56,894,345
Insurance 19,717,316 17,467,983
Office Rent 151,993,311 82,461,781
Advertisement 58,597,617 42,886,765
Electricity & Water Charges 15,379,942 10,686,355
Rates and Taxes 6,990,382 3,821,154
Directors Remuneration 12,432,012 11,826,926
Travelling and Conveyance 79,976,002 77,021,113
Repairs & Maintenance 4,136,112 4,171,592
Commission  to Non-Whole Time Directors 4,200,000 4,200,000
Deferred Revenue and Amalgamation Expenses Writen Off 155,978,586 161,765,716
Loss on sale of Asset 1,029,527 922,643
Legal, Professional  & Consultancy Charges 16,808,413 –
Bad debts 1,927,809 3,586,642

TOTAL                 959,994,358 631,057,706
SCHEDULE -18: INTEREST & FINANCIAL CHARGES (Net)
Fixed Loans 297,284,199 177,294,485
Others 206,262,677 162,824,367

503,546,876 340,118,852
Less : Interest received on Fixed Deposit [TDS : Rs 45,716,827] 203,365,287 206,415,619
[Previous Year TDS : Rs.42,115,670]

TOTAL 300,181,589 133,703,233
SCHEDULE -19: TAX EXPENSES
Income Tax 122,845,413 124,669,926
Deferred Tax 55,958,330 161,951,780
Fringe Benefit Tax 2,746,726 4,621,640
Wealth Tax 45,000 110,000
MAT Credit Entitlement (64,000,000) (99,500,000)
Taxation Adjustment of Previous year 214,757 117,935

TOTAL 117,810,226 191,971,281
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SCHEDULE NO. 20
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
20.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries are prepared under historical cost convention in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable in India and in accordance with the mandatory Accounting Standards
prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

20.2 Principles of consolidation
The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as of the
Company.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
i. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events

in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate Financial
Statements.

ii. The Consolidation of the financial statements of the holding company and its Subsidiaries is done to the extent possible on a line by
line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses; inter group transactions, balances and unrealized
inter company profits have been eliminated in the process of consolidation.

iii. The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the subsidiary companies
at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognized as ‘Goodwill’ being an asset in the
consolidated financial statements.  Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of investment
is in excess of cost of investment in the Company, it is recognized as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves and
Surplus’, in the consolidated financial statement.

iv. The accounts of foreign Subsidiaries are classified as non-integral foreign operations and are translated into Indian Rupees (Reporting
Currency) for Balance Sheet items using the currency exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. For revenues, cost and
expenses, the simple average of the average monthly rates prevailing during the reporting period has been used.

v. Minority interest in subsidiaries represents the minority shareholders proportionate share of the net asset and net income.

20.3 Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

20.4.      Revenue Recognition
i. Revenue from sale of products is recognized, in accordance with the sales contract, on delivery of goods to the Customer.  Revenue

from product sales are shown net of taxes.
ii. Revenue on Software Development services comprises revenue priced on time and material and fixed-price contracts.  Revenue

priced on time and material contracts are recognized as related services are performed.  Revenue from fixed-price, fixed time-frame
contracts is recognized in accordance with the percentage of completion method.

iii. Revenue from Technical Service, Training, support and other services is recognized as the related services are performed over the
duration of the contract/course.

iv. Dividend is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established at the balance sheet date.

20.5. Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and the changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are shown separately.

20.6. Fixed Assets
(a) Tangible Fixed Assets
i. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.  Cost includes all expenses incurred to bring the assets to its

present location and condition. During the year, exchange differences on translation of foreign currency loans obtained to purchase
fixed assets from countries outside India are recognized in Profit and Loss account.

ii. Interest on borrowed money allocated to and utilized for fixed assets, pertaining to the period up to the date the fixed asset is ready
for its intended use, is capitalized.

iii. Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding as of each balance sheet date and the cost of fixed assets not ready
for its intended use before such date are disclosed under Capital Work-in-progress.
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(b) Intangible Assets
i. All intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
ii. The cost of acquired intangible assets is the consideration paid for acquisition and other incidental costs incurred in bringing the

intangible assets for its intended use.
iii. Internally generated intangible assets are valued at cost which were incurred during the development phase of intangibles which

comprises of expenditure on materials and services used or consumed, salaries and other employment related cost of personnel
engaged in development of intangible asset, other direct expenditure and overheads that are necessary for the generation of the
intangible asset and that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

iv. Interest on borrowed money allocated to and utilized for intangible assets, pertaining to the period up to the date the intangible assets
is ready for its intended use is capitalized in accordance with Accounting Standard 16.

v. Amount paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets, which is not put to use as at reporting date and the cost of intangible assets
not ready for its intended use before such date are disclosed under Capital Work-in-progress.

(c) Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date using internal and external sources, whether there is any indication that an asset
(both tangible and intangible) may be impaired. If any such indications exist, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to
its less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject
to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. In respect of goodwill the impairment loss will be reversed only when it was caused by
specific external events and their effects have been reversed by subsequent external events.

20.7. Research and Development
Research costs are charged to Profit and Loss account and the expenditure incurred relating to the development phase are treated as
advances in Capital Work-in-progress and are capitalized when the intangible asset is ready for use.

20.8. Depreciation and Amortization
i. Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on Straight Line method at the rate prescribed under the respective applicable laws in case

of each subsidiary.
ii. Other Intangible assets (other than goodwill) are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on straight-line basis,

commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use as estimated by the management.
iii. After recognition of impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the asset is on the revalued amount prospectively over the remaining

useful life of the assets.

20.9. Inventories 
Inventories comprises of Third Party software products and Own software products
i. Own software products which are developed/being developed are valued at allocated cost on specific identification method or the net

realizable value whichever is lower.
ii. Third party software products are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost formula used is on weighted

average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost
necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is net of VAT Credit.

20.10. Investments
Investments are either classified as current or long term based on the management’s intention at the time of purchase.
i. Long term investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution in the value of such investments.  Diminution in value is

provided for where the management is of the opinion that the diminution is of permanent nature.
ii. Current investments are valued at lower of cost or fair value. Any reduction in carrying amount and any reversals of such reduction

are charged or credited to the profit and loss account.

20.11. Effect of Exchange Fluctuation on foreign currency transactions
i. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recorded when the amount actually received on sales or actually paid when the expenditure is incurred, is
converted into Indian Rupees. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions are recognized as income or expense
in the period in which they arise.

ii. Non-Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
iii. Period-end balances of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities other than net investments in non-integral foreign operations

are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange difference is recorded in the profit
and loss account.
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iv. For the purpose of the translation of financial statement of foreign subsidiaries, the same are classified as non-integral foreign
operations.  In case of non-integral foreign operation accounts, all assets and liabilities both monetary and non-monetary are
translated at the closing rate.  Items of income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the period.  Resulting
exchange rate difference is accumulated in ‘Foreign currency translation reserve’ as a separate component of shareholders’ funds,
until the disposal of “Net investment in non-integral foreign operation”.

20.12. Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit plans, pension schemes and defined contribution plans, or funds are governed by the statutes of the countries in
which the holding and subsidiaries are located and also as per the rules of the respective companies.  Such contribution to the funds or
future liability on actuarial valuation is charged to Profit and Loss account.  In case of leave encashment, the Accrued liability is provided
based on the unavailed leave to the credit of employees in accordance with the rules of respective subsidiary companies wherever
applicable, whereas the holding company provides on the basis of actuarial valuations.

i. Post-employment benefit plans
Contributions to defined retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to contributions. For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the
profit and loss account for the period in which they occur. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, and as reduced by the
fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions
in future contributions to  the scheme.

ii. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees
is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service. These benefits include compensated absences such as paid
annual leave, overseas social security contributions and performance incentives.

iii. Long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

20.13. Income Tax
i. Current income tax expenses comprises of taxes on income from operations in India and in foreign jurisdictions.  Income tax payable

in India is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.Tax expenses relating to overseas operations is
determined in accordance with tax laws applicable in countries where such operations are domiciled.

ii. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing differences that result between
the profit offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in respect of timing difference which
originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing difference which originates first is considered to reverse first. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the profit and loss account in the year of change. Deferred
tax assets on timing differences are recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the appropriateness of their
respective carrying values at each balance sheet date.

iii. Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the
future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably.

iv. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance taxes paid and
income tax provisions arising in the same tax jurisdiction.

v. The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relating to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

20.14.   Earnings per Share
i. Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earning available to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average

number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.
ii. Diluted Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings available to existing and potential Equity Shareholders by

aggregate of the weighted average number of Equity Shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares (FCCB). Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
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20.15. Leases
i. Lease arrangements where substantial risk and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset vests with the lessor, such leases are

recognized as operating leases.
ii. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account.

SCHEDULE NO.21
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
21.1 Particulars of the Subsidiary Companies considered in the consolidated financial statements and their reporting dates

Sl. No. Name of Company Country of % of voting power held Reporting date as at
incorporation

i. Systat Software Inc,. USA USA 100% March 31, 2009

ii. Cranes Software UK Limited (Earlier UK Wholly Owned subsidiary of March 31, 2009
known as Systat Software UK Limited) Systat Software Inc

iii. Systat Software Asia  Pacific Limited India 100% March 31, 2009

iv. Systat Software GmbH Germany 100% March 31, 2009

v. Cranes Software international Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% March 31, 2009

vi. Cranes Software Inc., USA 100% March 31, 2009

vii. Analytix Systems Private Limited India 100% March 31, 2009

viii. Tilak Autotech Pvt Ltd India 100% March 31, 2009

ix. Dunn Solutions Group Inc,. USA Wholly Owned subsidiary of March 31, 2009
Cranes Software Inc

x. Caravel Info Systems Pvt Ltd India 100% March 31, 2009

xi Proland Software Pvt Ltd India 100% March 31, 2009

xii Engineering Technology Associates Inc. USA USA Wholly Owned  subsidiary of March 31, 2009
Cranes Software Inc

xiii Engineering Technology Associates Inc. China Wholly Owned subsidiary of March 31, 2009
(Shangai)Inc Engineering Technology

Associates Inc, USA

xiv Esqube Communicaton Solutions Pvt Ltd India 76% March 31, 2009

xv Cubeware GmbH Germany Wholly owned subsidiary of
Systat Software GmbH March 31, 2009

During the period under review,
i. The Company through its wholly owned subsidiary Systat Software GmbH, subscribed to 100% share capital of Cubewere GmbH.

The Company provides computer aided engineering services and develops computer-engineering software.

21.2 Contingent liabilities not provided for and Capital commitments

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

a. Contingent liabilities not provided for

I. Outstanding guarantees and counter guarantees 2449.91 467.52

II. Bills discounted 535.71 –

b. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 490.82 14.97
debts on Tax matters in dispute under appeal

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 13.29 49.18
on capital account and not provided for

21.3 Security for borrowings
i) Working Capital and Term Loans: Bank finances are secured by hypothecation of stocks of software, book debts, and collaterally

secured by properties; personally guaranteed by whole time Directors and also have additional collateral security by way of pledge
of promoters share for part amount.
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ii) Vehicle Loans: Finance for purchase of vehicles are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles.

iii) Finances availed from UPS Capital Business Credit are personally guaranteed by Whole time Directors.

21.4. Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders (A) 1214.17 1149.81

Adjustment for interest on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) net of Taxes (B) 69.02 35.56

Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders

(after adjustment for diluted earnings) (A+B) 1283.19 1185.37

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding (C) 117.77 114.67

Add: Effect of dilutive issues of shares (D) 19.24 19.24

Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares outstanding (C+D) 137.01 133.91

Basic Earnings per share (A/C) 10.30 10.03

Diluted Earnings per share (A+B)/(C+D) 9.36 8.85

Nominal Value per share (Rs.) 2.00 2.00

21.5 Current Investments (Quoted)- In Money Market Mutual Funds

2008-09 (Rs. in Million)

Particulars No. of Units Face Value Current year Previous year

ING Vysya Liquid Fund Institutional-Daily Dividend Reinvestment 35184 10 0.35 0.33

ING Vysya Floating Rate Fund -Daily Dividend 165 10 0.00 0.00

Aggregate Fair value of quoted investments – – 0.35 0.33

Aggregate cost of quoted investments – – 0.35 0.33

21.6. Preferential  Issue:

The Company issued 1,000,000 Equity shares of Rs.2 each at a premium of Rs.108 per share on preferential basis to the strategic

investors on September 22, 2006 amounting to Rs.110 million. During October 2005 the company raised 1,200,000 equity shares of

Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.890 per share to promoters and strategic investors.  Pending utilization, the aggregate amount of

Rs.1190.00 million is forming part of Balances with Scheduled Banks in Indian Rupees-Deposit Accounts as on March 31, 2009.

21.7. Foreign currency convertible Bonds

The Company issued and allotted on March 17, 2006 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (Considered as non-Monetary liability) for

Euro 42 Million (Equivalent for Rs. 2,270.10 Million) bearing an interest at 2.5% per annum payable half yearly.  The bonds are convertible

at any time on and after April 27, 2006 and till close of business On March 11, 2011 and were convertible into shares or GDRs at an  initial

conversion price of Rs. 143.293 per share with a fixed rate of  exchange on conversion of Euro 1.00 = Rs. 52.6828.  The outstanding

bonds are redeemable at a premium of 12.833% on March 18, 2011. Further, based on the relevant clause of the issue document,

conversion price has now been refixed at Rs.115.  During the year ended 31 March 2009 there has been no conversion of the Bonds into

Shares. If the outstanding bonds as on March 31, 2009 are converted into equity shares or GDRs, then the share capital of the Company

will increase by 19,240,675 shares.

Proportionate Premium payable on redemption of FCCB of Rs 60 Million has been transferred to FCCB Redemption reserve during the year

out of share premium account.  In the event that the conversion option is exercised by the holders of FCCB in the future, the amount of

premium charged to the share premium account will be suitably adjusted in the respective years.
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21.8. Related Party Disclosures

Current Year (Rs. in Million)

Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Key Management Relatives of Total
Personnel Key Management Related

Personnel Parties

Directors Remuneration –      – 9.13 – 9.13
Commission to Directors – – 3.30 – 3.30
Balance as on 31.03.09 payable – – 4.75 – 4.75

Previous Year (Rs. in Million)

Particulars Subsidiaries Associates Key Management Relatives of Total
Personnel Key Management Related

Personnel Parties

Directors Remuneration – – 8.53 – 8.53
Commission to Directors – – 3.30 – 3.30
Balance as on 31.03.08 payable – – 3.30 – 3.30

Note:
Names of related parties and description of relationship
                                                                                                                   

Key Management Personnel Mr.Asif Khader
Mr.Mukkaram Jan
Mr.Mueed Khader                          

Relatives of Key Management Personnel Nil

Other Related Parties Orca Infotech Private Limited
K&J Holdings Private Limited
K&J Telecom Private Limited (Previously known as Jansons Telecom Pvt. Ltd.)
Jansons Land & Property Development Private Limited
SPSS South Asia Private Limited
Keysoft Solutions Private Limited
Spice Capital Fund Private Limited
Sea Equity Enterprises Private Limited

In respect of the above parties, there is no provision for doubtful debts for the financial year and no amount has been written off/written back
during the year in respect of debts due from/to them.
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21.9. Segment Reporting
The Company has identified geographic segments as its primary segment and Business segments as its secondary segment.

Primary Segments - a) Exports and b) Domestic
Secondary Segments - a) Proprietary Products and Services and b) Product Alliances

Primary Segment Information-Geographical Segment (Rs. in Million)

SL.No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Export Domestic Total Export Domestic Total

1 Segment Revenue 4508.58 579.34 5087.92 3198.45 754.00 3952.45

2 Segment Results 1330.31 102.05 1432.36 1162.76 272.74 1435.50

Other Income 200.63 33.98

Operating Profit 1632.99 1469.48

Interest Expenses 300.18 133.70

Profit Before Tax 1332.81 1335.78

Tax expenses 117.81 191.97

Extraordinary items – 5.95

Profit after Tax 1215.00 1149.76

Adjustments relating to earlier year 1.88 0.05

Net Profit 1213.12 1149.71

3 Segment Assets 13970.92 1726.74 15697.66 8818.73 2939.57 11758.30

Unallocated Corporate Assets 1404.60 613.36

Total Assets 17102.26 12371.66

Segment Liabilities 144.49 36.12 180.61 64.83 16.20 81.03

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 1443.61 1533.16

Total Liabilities 1624.22 1614.19

Capital Employed (Segment Assets –
Segment Liabilities) 13826.43 1690.62 15517.05 8753.90 2923.37 11677.27

4 Capital Expenditure 826.25 109.68 935.93 1542.51 385.63 1928.14

5 Depreciation 615.64 153.35 768.99 532.73 37.49 570.22

Secondary Segment Information - Business Segment (Rs. in Million)

SL.No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Proprietary Products Product Alliances Proprietary Products Product Alliances
 and Services and Services

1. Segment Revenue 4613.42 474.50 3345.11 607.34

2. Segment Results 1375.42 56.94 1366.21 69.29

3. Segment Assets 14755.80 941.86 11083.02 675.28

4 Capital Expenditure 798.82 137.11 1446.10 482.04

21.10. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Rupees)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous  Year

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation, minority interest
and exceptional items 1,332,811,297 1,341,731,267
Adjustments for:
Prior period adjustment (1,878,895) (52,427)
Share of minority loss 1,054,247 102,025
Loss on sale of assets 1,029,527 922,643
Profit on sale of Investments - 5,948,124
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency
cash & cash equivalents. 8,803,455 (48,668,221)
Depreciation and amortization 768,990,701 570,220,990
Preliminary expenses 155,978,586 161,765,716
Dividend / interest income (Net) (203,387,947) (207,303,296)
Interest expense on borrowings 503,546,876 340,118,852
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,566,947,847 2,164,785,672
Adjustments for working capital
Inventory (20,651,393) 1,432,090
Debtors (2,244,799,909) (481,251,973)
Loans and advances (911,878,374) (12,405,735)
Current liabilities 518,050,225 474,123,501
Cash generated from operations (92,331,603) 2,146,683,555
Adjustments
Direct Taxes paid 12,007,695 (124,038,973)

Net cash flow from Operating Activities (80,323,908) 2,022,644,582

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Investments - (5,500)
Proceeds from sale of Investments                   (1,671,036) 64,000,276
Dividend / Interest received 203,387,947 207,303,296
(Increase)/Decrease in deferred revenue expenditure                  17,064,712 (17,064,712)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed assets                               - 110,416,731
Acquisition of property, fixed assets             (2,183,357,229)  (3,154,176,120)
(including advances)

Net cash flow from Investing Activities (1,964,575,606) (2,789,526,029)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend and Dividend Tax (137,602,044) (133,267,189)
Interest on borrowed funds (503,546,876) (340,118,852)
Secured Loans / Borrowings 1,698,890,912 791,514,302
Unsecured Loans 691,874,466 442,009,981

Net cash flow from Financing Activities 1,749,616,458 760,138,242
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (295,283,057) (6,743,205)
Exchange difference on translation of foreign
currency cash & cash equivalents. (12,470,931) 5,863,631
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,808,739,168 2,809,618,742
Closing cash and cash equivalents 2,500,985,179 2,808,739,168

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For S.Janardhan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Balakrishna S. Bhat Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan Parasuram B
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 202976

Bangalore
June 30, 2009
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STATEMENT REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

(Pursuant to approval No. 47/495/2009-CL-III dated July 8, 2009  received from the Ministry of Company Affairs under Section 21 2 (8) of the Companies Act, 1956.
(Rs. in Million)

Subsidiaries Systat Software Systat Software Systat Software Cranes Software Caravel Info Cranes Software Tilak Autotech Analytix Proland Esqube
GmbH Inc (Consolidated Asia Pacific Ltd International Systems Pvt.Ltd Inc (Consolidated Pvt. Ltd Systems Software Communication

(Consolidated with Cranes Pte Ltd with Dunn Pvt.Ltd Pvt.Ltd Solutions
with Cubeware Software UK. Ltd.) Solutions Group Pvt. Ltd

GmbH)  Inc, Engineering
Technolgy

Associate Inc &
China)

Reporting Currency  EURO  USD INR SGD INR  USD INR INR INR INR

Exchange Rate in rupees

 as on March 31, 2009 67.48 50.95 1 34.32 1 50.95 1 1 1 1

Issued & Subscribed capital 1.45 185.61 3.80 4.43 1.20 477.39             0.10                0.20                   0.48                         0.12

Reserves (33.09) (157.50) (8.45) 14.81 0.24 (41.57) (14.23)                1.35                   3.24                     (10.25)

Total Assets 1425.12 1,270.17 82.61 217.42 11.86 1,299.89           19.97                1.55                 14.39                        35.54

Total Liabilities 1425.12 1,270.17 82.61 217.42 11.86 1,299.89           19.97                1.55                 14.39                       35.54

Investments 1212.33 – – – – – – – – –

Turnover 702.86 340.09 – 62.67 24.40 1,128.00             2.94 –                   5.36                         4.96

Profit /(loss) before taxation (36.44) (107.71) (10.29) 17.01 (7.70) (37.13) (5.33) (0.02) (2.21) (4.48)

Provision for taxation (4.57) (19.68) – 2.22 (0.65) (10.50)             – –                 0.93  0.07

Profit / (loss) after taxation (31.87) (88.03) (10.29) 14.79 (7.05) (26.63) (5.33) (0.02) (3.14) (4.55)

Proposed dividend              Nil           Nil                   Nil           Nil           Nil   Nil           Nil           Nil           Nil           Nil

Country Germany USA India Singapore India USA India India India India

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Bangalore Asif Khader Mukkaram Jan
Date: July 30, 2009 Managing Director Director




